
 

 

Meeting 
 

Safer Communities Partnership Board 

Date and time 
 

Friday 28th April, 2023 
 

At 10.00 AM 

Venue 
 

Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, London NW4 4BQ 
 
TO: Members of Safer Communities Partnership Board (Quorum 3) 
 
Chair: Councillor Sara Conway 
Vice Chair: Representative of the Metropolitan Police 

  
Partners:  
Community Safety Manager London Borough of Barnet (LBB)  
Barnet Homes  
Barnet Reducing Offending Partnership Coordinator  
Chair, Barnet Safeguarding Adults Board  
Assistant Director, Counter Fraud  
Head of Community Safety, Enforcement, CCTV & Intelligence  
Director of Children’s Social Care  
LBB Director of Public Health LBB  
Executive Director of Assurance  
Inclusion Barnet  
Barnet Safer Neighbourhood Board  
London Fire Brigade  
Metropolitan Police  
National Probation Service  
North Central London CCG  
North West London Magistrates Court  
Re  
Victim Support 
 
 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before the date of the 
committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Tuesday 25 April 2023 at 
10AM. Requests must be submitted to Corinna Demetriou corinna.demetriou@barnet.gov.uk 
. 
 
Governance Services contact:  Corinna Demetriou corinna.demetriou@barnet.gov.uk 
Media Relations Contact:  Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 Tristan.Garrick@Barnet.gov.uk 
 

Assurance Group 
 
Please consider the environment before printing.  
 
Recording of Meetings 

mailto:Tristan.Garrick@barnet.gov.uk


Members of the public have the right to film, record or photograph public meetings. You may be asked to stop 
filming, photographing or recording a meeting if the Chair feels that the activity is disrupting the meeting. 
The meeting may be broadcast live or recorded for later transmission by the Council.  Recordings may be 
available live or for twelve months afterwards. 
If you are attending the meeting either in person or online, you understand that you may be picked up in 
recordings made by the public or the Council.



 

 

Order of business 
 
Item No Title of Report Pages  

1.   Welcome and Introductions  
 

 

 
2.   Minutes of Previous Meeting  

 
5 - 12 

 
3.   Apologies for Absence  

 
 

 
4.   Matters Arising  

 
 

 
5.   Performance Dashboard- up to and including February 2023  

 
13 - 30 

 
6.   North West BCU Police Update to the Safer Communities 

Partnership Board  
 

Verbal 
Update 

 
7.   Family Services Report on Reducing Offending and Tackling 

Violence  
 

31 - 68 

 
8.   Mental Health Charter verbal update  

 
Verbal 
Update  

9.   Performance and Delivery Progress on drug and alcohol misuse 
services  
 

69 - 82 

 
10.   Serious Violence Needs Assessment  

 
83 - 86 

 
11.   Forward Work Programme  

 
87 - 92 

 
12.   Any Other Business  

 
 

 
13.   Date of Next Meeting - 21 July 2023  

 
 

 
 

Facilities for people with disabilities 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Corinna 
Demetriou.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our 
minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 
 
 

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 



 
 
 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 



1 
 

Safer Communities Partnership Board 
 

Minutes of the meeting held 10.00 am on 20 January 2023 
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, London NW4 4BQ 

 
Board Members present: 
 
 
Councillor Sara Conway Chair 
Inspector Justin Zitver Metropolitan Police Barnet 
Chief Inspector Sean Lynch Metropolitan Police Barnet 
Clair Green Executive Director of Assurance 
Tina McElligott Director of Children’s Social Care 
Declan Khan Assistant Director, Counter Fraud, Community Safety & 

Protection, LBB 
Maggie Higton Brown Head of CCTV & Community Safety 
Louisa Songer Public Health Strategist 
Matt Leng Community Safety Manager, LBB 
Richard Norfolk Reducing Offending Partnership Manager, LBB   
Altaf Patel  Community Safety, CCTV & Intelligence Manager 
Ben Norfolk Community Safety Analyst   
Fiona Bateman Independent Chair, Barnet Safeguarding Adults Board 
Reshma Hirani Hate Crime reporting Coordinator, Barnet Mencap     
Koreen Logie Head of Service, National Probation Service 
Michelle Davies Housing Manager, Barnet Homes 
Caroline Collier Chief Executive, Inclusion Barnet 
Ray Booth Chief Executive, Barnet Mencap 
 
 
  
1.    Welcome and Introductions  

 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting.  
  

2.    Minutes of Previous Meeting  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 2022 be agreed as a 
correct record. 
  
  
3.    Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies were received from Greg Terefenko, Head of Housing, Barnet Homes, Tamara 
Djuretic, Director of Public Health and Peter Curtin, London Fire Brigade.    
  
   
4.    Matters Arising  

 
None.  
  
5.    Performance Dashboard up to and including November 2022  

5

AGENDA ITEM 2



2 

 
Matt Leng, Community Safety Manager gave an overview on performance up until November 

2022 which included highlights: 
  

 In the 3 months of September 2022 to November 2022 there were 523 cases of 
residential burglary in Barnet. 

 
 the 3 months of September 2022 to November 2022 there were 177 cases of non 

residential burglary in Barnet 
 
 In the 3 months of September 2022 to November 2022 there were 191 cases of robbery 

of personal property in Barnet 
 
 In the 3 months of September 2022 to November 2022 there were 569 cases of violence 

with injury in Barnet 
 
 In the 3 months of September 2022 to November 2022 there were 28 cases of knife 

crime with injury in Barnet 
 From 24th October 2022- 29th November 2022 there were 383 incidents captured by 

CCTV in Barnet 
  
The Safer Communities Partnership Board noted the contents of the presentation. 
  
6.    Family Services Report on Reducing Offending and Tackling Violence  

 
Tina McElligott, Director of Childrens Social Care presented the report and noted that it 
provided the board with an overview to the Safer Communities Partnership Board on three 
key areas of Family Services delivery that cross over into the Community Safety Strategy, 
which are:  
  
• Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women & Girls  
• Violence, Vulnerability & Exploitation  
• Reducing Re-Offending  
  
Key highlights from the report were noted as:  
  
Barnet’s rate of DA incidents is 12.1 per 1000 population (12 months up to the end of August 
2022). Barnet has the 3rd lowest rate of reported DA incidents in London. 
  
There were 728 Domestic Abuse Violence with Injury offences recorded by the police in 
Barnet in 12 months up to the end of December 2022 (a decrease of 1.9 % compared to the 
previous year). 69 suspects were identified and charged by police. 
  
An assessment of the domestic abuse MARAC referrals over last quarter from October 2022 
to December 2022 shows that:  
• 31.1 % of victims in the cohort had a reported mental health need. There is currently good 
engagement however this can be improved 
• 5.7 % victims had a reported alcohol misuse need. 
• 5.7% had a reported illicit substance misuse need.  
• 6.6% (n=8) referrals were for child-to-parent violence  
• 6.6% of DA MARAC cases included a request for a Clare’s Law (Domestic Abuse 
Disclosure Scheme) 
  

6



3 

In Q3 a total of 33 multi-agency practitioners and managers attended domestic abuse & 
VAWG Training. Some additional funding has been agreed in December which will enable 
the domestic abuse consultant to continue and develop and implement the strategy. They 
will remain in post until the end of the strategy which is an extremely positive development 
for the service.  

Family Services 0-19 Early Help Services deliver multi-agency Department for Work & 
Pensions (DWP) Reducing Parental Conflict (RPC) training which shares tools and 
interventions for direct work with children and families. The training identifies the escalation 
of parental conflict to domestic abuse and the need for safeguarding and support to be put in 
place and the team are now rolling-out a further three years of training with additional 
funding that has been received for continuation of the programme. 

Family Services 0-19 Early Help Services delivered one Women’s AVA CODA Group in Q3. 
In total 15 parent victims (mothers) were invited to the sessions and 8 completed the full 
suite of sessions. Positive feedback was received from all the parents that attended the 
sessions and the parents have requested a monthly ‘Coffee Morning’ as a follow up each 
term.  

Barnet Council has committed to working to end male violence against women by becoming 
White Ribbon (WR) Accredited on 11 April 2022. The steering group continues to meet 
monthly and implement the 3-year action plan. 

Barnet Solace DA Advocacy and Support Service (SASS) received 248 referrals in Q3 
2022/23 (this figure does not include Jewish Womens Aid data. This is still a high number of 
referrals, however is lower than the previous quarter reporting.  

There were 97 homelessness approaches to Barnet Homes due to domestic abuse in Q3, 
2022/3. Of these, 31 were provided with temporary accommodation. Housing options include 
refuge accommodation, sanctuary installations to make victims homes safer, move to private 
sector properties, move through the North London DA reciprocal scheme and for single 
applicants housing in the private rented sector. 

The One Stop Shop (OSS), led by Barnet Homes in partnership with Barnet council, Solace 
Women’s Aid, Asian Women’s Resource Centre, private solicitor firms, Barnet Magistrate 
and Cyber Care. received 105 referrals in Q3, 202/23 and 72 individuals engaged with the 
team. New partners are joining the OSS including a No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 
advisor from the Asian Women’s Resource Centre, a Welfare Benefit Advisor from Boost 
and the Barnet Wellbeing Hub.  

The Rise Perpetrator Programme is commissioned by Family Services and is aimed at 
reducing re-offending and repeat victimisation. The service successfully bid for a further 3-
year contract starting in January 2023 

Barnet Council has signed up to the Mayor’s Women’s Night Safety Charter. The plan will 
include how we will work with local partners and businesses to create a network of safe 
spaces across the borough. This will include a communications campaign and training. 

International Women’s Day 2023 events will be taking place across the borough, the council 
and its partners will coordinate communications and information about the various 
celebrations and events taking place. 

Overall, the rate of violence against the person rate in Barnet in the reporting period is 4.9 
per 1,000 population. This is a decrease of 6.6% since November 2022. 

7



4 

A Restorative Justice Coordinator started in post in December and will support roll out of 
training in conflict resolution skills to schools and community providers. It will also 
complement the restorative justice work taking place in the Youth Justice Service which is 
supporting victims to meet with those that have perpetrated crime against them allowing 
space for reflection, apology, and reparation.  

 The Violence and Vulnerability Team have held a series of practice forums across children’s 
and adult services to provide space for reflection and encourage learning. Two sessions 
were held in Q3 including ‘considering SEN in adults and adolescents’ and ‘addressing how 
all men and boys can work towards ending violence against women, changing culture, and 
understanding the White Ribbon movement. 

The next piece of work is looking at the strategic needs assessment in the borough, 
documents included provide all the information needed.  Cllr Conway – women’s celebration, 
a small pot of funding for community groups across the borough and comm safety walks 
may pick up specific things specifically around women and girls.  

The Safer Communities Partnership Board to considered and noted the progress being 
made to reduce offending and tackle exploitation and violence, including violence against 
women & girls. 
  
7.    North West BCU Police Update- Verbal Update  

 
Cllr Conway noted the difficulties within the service currently and noted that the Police and 
the partnership Board continue to build trust, working with the teams and addressing local 
issues where possible.  

CI Lynch updated the board on the clear areas of focus for the Police which includes more 
trust, less crime and more professionalism.  He noted that a number of actions have been 
taken already and have been adopted locally with the new commissioner already starting to 
develop a new command, Proactive operations that the commissioner and local police will 
be taking forward will restore confidence in the service and gives a commitment of the new 
commissioner’s approach to how seriously it is being taken. He continued that a lot of 
learning that will take place from the Baroness Casey review.  

CI Lynch also informed that an audit of national police databases where every officer will be 
scrutinised as well as an internal appeal in terms of reporting corruption has been launched. 
Both CI Lynch and CI Zitver gave their underlying commitment on continuing to work closely 
together.   

Fiona Bateman made the suggestion of changing the focus and the risks and timelines to 
partnership working. CI Lynch noted that work has been carried out locally however the 
pressures that all partners face is recognised and that a small, local project team aligns with 
the local issues and a need for the teams internally to identify the learning from these 
incidents. Cllr Conway suggested a broader update at the next meeting and noted that ward 
councillors should know about this work.  

  
  
8.    London Fire Brigade update including Commissioners report- Verbal 

Update  
 

Cllr Conway advised that the Fire Brigade sent apologies however any comments could be 
directed to the governance officer to collate to the team.  

8



5 

Fiona Bateman commented in relation to the report noting that the crucial point within the 
report is the home safety element and the need to make sure this is fully implemented 
especially the hospital discharge element.  

The Safer Communities Partnership Board noted the London Fire Brigade report, including 
the Commissioners report. 
  
9.    Autism and the Criminal Justice System Report  

 
Ray Booth, Chief Executive of Barnet Mencap presented the report including the work that is 
being carried out and the implementation of the Autism Strategy and identifies some of the 
current gaps in being able to carry these out effectively.  
  
Mr Booth informed partners on the Safer Communities Partnership Board of the main gaps 
in ensuring the strategy is fulfilled, some of which include data, engagement, autism card 
alerts which is a well-established mechanism for identifying autistic people however its use 
locally is unclear and it can be quite problematic, training and healthcare support with the 
main ambition of the strategy being the overall acceptance in society of those who are 
autistic, especially those in the youth criminal justice system.  
  
Mr Booth also informed that it has been hard to obtain any data on the number of autistic 
young people and adults in contact with the CJS and that it is not clear what the police and 
the Diversion and Liaison Service is doing to increase the use of alternatives to prosecution 
and custody. 
  
The Safer Communities Partnership Board noted the Autism and the criminal justice system 
report.  

  
10.    Hate Crime Project - Annual report  

 
Reshma Hirani, Project Coordinator, Barnet Mencap gave the Board and update on the Hate 
crime project –and noted that it seeks to implement parts of the Councils hate crime strategy 
with 7 key areas attached to the strategy.  
  
The key objectives outlined in the report are to continue to provide ongoing support to 
victims and achieve an increase community confidence and to safeguard the vulnerable 
people in the borough of Barnet.  

The key objectives of the Zero Tolerance to Hate Crime Project are to implement parts of the 
Council’s Hate Crime Strategy and focus on: 
  
      Increasing reporting of: Disability Hate Crime; Racist and Religious Hate Crime; and Anti 

LGBT Hate Crime.  
      Providing ongoing support victims of hate crime and where appropriate referring them to 

other service providers and support organisations.  
      Increasing community confidence in reporting hate crime to the Police. 
      Improving cross-agency working to tackle hate. 
      Expanding the cohort of Hate Crime Reporting Centres to represent a diverse cross-

section of the community and engage with harder-to-reach communities.  
      Safeguarding vulnerable adults and children from the impact of hate crime. 
For the year 2021/22 there were a total of 905 hate crimes recorded in Barnet. This was an 
increase from 857 in 2020/21 of which can be broken down into the following: 

9



6 

 
         Racist and Religious Hate Crime: 827 
         Disability Hate Crime: 23 
         Homophobic Hate Crime: 68 
         Transgender Identity Hate Crime: 13 
 

The Hate Crime Reporting Co-Ordinator has delivered 6 Staff Training Workshops for 77 
staff in 2022. Workshops include information on identifying and reporting hate crime so that 
frontline staff can support victims to report hate crime to the Police. This year will be more 
focused on financial abuse and scams/online fraud. Workshops have taken place with a 
number of organisations including: 

 Barnet Federated GP Service 

 Age UK 

 Probation Services 

 Victim Support 

 Jewish Care 

 Muswell Hill Medical Centre 

Cllr Conway thanked Ms Hirani for all the work carried out on the strategy to date and would 
continue with safer spaces for women work in conjunction with the town centre teams where 
there is a natural link for community safety. She continued that this work links in with the 
Civic and Communities events paper that is going to the Communities, Leadership & 
Libraries Committee at the forthcoming meeting.  

The Safer Communities Partnership Board noted the Hate Crime project – Annual Report.  

  
  
11.    Combatting drugs Partnership- Verbal Update  

 
The Safer Communities Partnership Board noted the update given by Louisa Songer who 
informed that the team have been currently reviewing the various arms of substance abuse 
which have been identified as breaking the supply chain, achieving a generational shift in the 
need for drugs and prevention and consequences to drug use along with delivering a world 
class delivery of recovery treatment. Since the last update the team have been working on 
the needs assessment to ensure all relevant data is reflected in this with a few gaps to still 
be explored with a more substantial update to come to the next meeting in April.  
  
  
12.    Forward Work Programme  

 
The Board discussed the Forward Plan programme and were urged to notify the relevant 
officer of any items they wished be included on the Forward Plan. 
  
  
13.    Any Other Business  

 
None.  

10



7 

  
14.    Date of Next Meeting  

 
 

The meeting finished at 12.19pm 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Performance Dashboard
up to and including February 2023

28th April 2023

13

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 5



Data Collection

2

The data for this report is collected from the following sources:

Crime Data:
https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/mps-monthly-crime-dashboard-data

ASB, CCTV and PREVENT Data:
Barnet Community Safety Team

*Slides 4-10 will be presented by MPS NW BCU
 Slides 11-18 are formed from LBB data (ECINS/CCTV) and will be presented by LBB

14



Notes Before We Start

3

• The lower the ranking the better Barnet is doing when compared with other 
boroughs across London on in the North West Borough Command Unit (NW 
BCU).

• Knife crime has previously been reported on as under 25’s and non-DV only, 
this report will note all knife crime with injury. 

• In the London comparison 1/32 is the best, 32/32 is the worst. Change is 
indicated by the Red Amber Green circle.

• In the NW BCS comparison 1/3 is the best, 3/3 is the worst. Change is indicated 
by the Red Amber Green arrow.

17

  32                    32
16

Rank in 
previous period

Rank in current 
period

The rank out of 
32 for London 

or 3 for the NW 
BCU

15



Domestic Burglary

4

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 522 cases of 
Residential Burglary in Barnet

There were 1934 cases of Residential Burglary in Barnet in the 
12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 months prior there 
were 1908. This is an increase of 1.4%

There were 522 cases of 
Residential Burglary in the 3 
months of December 2022 to 
February 2023.In the same 
period 12 months prior there 
were 482. This is an increase 
of 8.3%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0

1

2

3

4

5

6
Residential Burglary per 10,000 Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
21 26

Emerging Issue

3                     3

3 3

16



Burglary Business and Community

5

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 169 cases of Non-
Residential Burglary in Barnet

There were 648 cases of Non-Residential Burglary in Barnet in 
the 12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 months prior 
there were 554. This is an increase of 17%

There were 169 cases of Non-
Residential Burglary in the 3 
months of December 2022 to 
February 2023.In the same 
period 12 months prior there 
were 182. This is a decrease 
of 7.1%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

Non-Residential Burglary per 100,000 
Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
24 16

Improving

3                     3

3 2

17



Robbery of Personal Property

6

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 191 cases of 
Robbery of Personal Property in Barnet

There were 681 cases of Robbery of Personal Property in 
Barnet in the 12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 
months prior there were 580. This is an increase of 17.4%

There were 191 cases of 
Robbery of Personal Property 
in the 3 months of December 
2022 to February 2023.In the 
same period 12 months prior 
there were 131. This is an 
increase of 45.8%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Robbery of Personal Property per 100,000 
Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
7 11

Emerging Issue

3                     3

1 2

18



Violence with Injury

7

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 540 cases of 
Violence with Injury in Barnet

There were 2325 cases of Violence with Injury in Barnet in the 
12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 months prior there 
were 2269. This is an increase of 2.5%

There were 540 cases of 
Violence with Injury in the 3 
months of December 2022 to 
February 2023.In the same 
period 12 months prior there 
were 502. This is an increase 
of 7.6%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
Violence with Injury per 10,000 Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
2 3

Emerging Issue

3                     3

1 2

19



Knife Crime With Injury

8

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 22 cases of Knife 
Crime With Injury in Barnet

There were 93 cases of Knife Crime With Injury in Barnet in 
the 12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 months prior 
there were 85. This is an increase of 9.4%

There were 22 cases of Knife 
Crime With Injury in the 3 
months of December 2022 to 
February 2023.In the same 
period 12 months prior there 
were 22. This is a decrease of 
0%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Knife Crime With Injury per 1,000,000 
Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
11 8

Improving

3                     3

1 1

20



Gun Crime Lethal Barreled Discharged

9

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 8 cases of Gun 
Crime Lethal Barreled Discharged in Barnet

There were 8 cases of Gun Crime Lethal Barreled Discharged 
in Barnet in the 12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 
months prior there were 7. This is an increase of 14.3%

There were 8 cases of Gun 
Crime Lethal Barreled 
Discharged in the 3 months of 
December 2022 to February 
2023.In the same period 12 
months prior there were 0.*

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Gun Crime Lethal Barreled Discharged per 
1,000,000 Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
1 31

Emerging Issue

3                     3

1 3

*It is not possible to calculate the percentage increase for Gun Crime for this period as the starting 
point is zero.

21



Domestic Abuse Violence With Injury (VWI)

10

Trend 3 Month Performance
MPS Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

NW BCU Comparison (3 Month Period) 
change from same period last year.

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 171 cases of 
Domestic Abuse VWI in Barnet

There were 722 cases of Domestic Abuse VWI in Barnet in the 
12 months up to February 2023. In the 12 months prior there 
were 747. This is a decrease of 3.3%

There were 171 cases of 
Domestic Abuse VWI in the 3 
months of December 2022 to 
February 2023.In the same 
period 12 months prior there 
were 160. This is an increase 
of 6.9%

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
De

c-
21

Ja
n-

22
Fe

b-
22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-2

2
M

ay
-2

2
Ju

n-
22

Ju
l-2

2
Au

g-
22

Se
p-

22
O

ct
-2

2
N

ov
-2

2
De

c-
22

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

0

5

10

15

20

25
Domestic Abuse VWI per 100,000 Population

MPS NW BCU Barnet

32                  32
2 2

No Change

3                     3

1 1

22



Anti-Social Behaviour – Cases  

11

ASB Tools and Powers Outcomes: December 2022-February 2023 Fixed Penalty Notices: 3 Months to February 2023

Community Trigger*: 3 Months to February 2023 

*Community Triggers give victims and communities the right to 
request a review of their case (where the local threshold is met), 
to bring agencies together to take a joined up, problem solving 
approach for the victim.  

3

15

FPN Data 3 Months to Feb 2023

Paid Unpaid 

Total Issued: 18

There was 1 Community Trigger 
application received during the 3 
months to February 2023. 
This was: Accepted 

Data is the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.)

Month

In
ju

nc
tio

n

CB
O

CP
N

 W
rit

te
n 

W
ar

ni
ng

CP
N

CP
N

 B
re

ac
he

d

PS
PO

PC
O

December 2022 0 0 7 2 0 1 1

January 2023 0 0 9 1 0 0 1

February 2023 0 0 9 0 0 9 1

Key 
CPN Written Warning - Community Protection Notice Written Warning – precursor to CPN

CPN - Community Protection Notice – used to stop a person/bus./org. committing ASB                

which spoils the community's quality of life

PCO - Premises Closure Order – used to protect victims and communities by closing 

premises that are causing nuisance or disorder

CBO - Criminal Behaviour Order – available on conviction of a criminal offence, used for 

the most serious and persistent offenders. 
PSPO – Public Space Protection Order - enforced within Barnet from December 202223



Anti-Social Behaviour - Community Safety MARAC 
(Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference) Cases 

12

Community Safety MARAC Cases (April 2022- February 2023) 

Data is from April 2022-February 2023 incl.

Between April 2022 - February 2022:
• Total CS MARAC cases average approx. 20 per month (ongoing cases, subject to actions from CS MARAC panel/partners)
• New CS MARAC cases average approx. 4 per month
• Closed CS MARAC cases average approx. 4 per month
• The CS MARAC is held every 6 weeks therefore there was no CS MARAC in May 2022, Aug 2022 and Dec 2022.

Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23
0

5

10

15

20

25

30
26

23 23

16 16

19 20

16

7
5

3 2 2

6

3
1

8

3

10

2 3 2

5

1

CS MARAC Cases: April-February 2022/23

Cases on CS MARAC New Cases on CS MARAC Closed Case on CS MARAC

24



CCTV Recorded Incidents 

13

CCTV by Incident Type: 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023

For the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 381 incidents captured by CCTV in Barnet

    
In the 3 months to February 2023: 
• 13% of CCTV incidents involved a Road Traffic Incident  

• 10% of CCTV incidents involved Public Disorder

• 10% of CCTV incidents involved a Welfare Concern

 

• 8% of CCTV incidents involved Anti-Social Behaviour

• 8% of CCTV incidents involved Fly Tipping

• 8% of CCTV incidents involved Offensive Weapons

* Other refers to incidents of vandalism and fraud

Alar
m 

Anti-S
ocia

l B
ehav

iour

Begg
ing 

Burgl
ary

CCTV Task
ing

Crim
inal 

Dam
ag

e
Fir

e 

Fly
 tip

ping 

Murder

Offe
nsiv

e W
eap

on 

Other

Police
 St

op

Public 
Diso

rder 

Road
 Traf

fic
 In

cid
ent 

Robbery

Se
xu

al 
Offe

nce

Sh
oplift

ing
Theft 

Vehicle
 Crim

e 

Violent C
rim

e 

Welfa
re Conce

rns
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

2%

8%
7%

3%
4%

2%
1%

8%

1%

8%

12%

1%

10%

13%

2% 2% 1%

3%

1%

4%

10%

Percentage of CCTV Incidents: 3 months to February 2023 

25



CCTV Recorded Incidents: By Ward 

14

CCTV Incidents by Ward: 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023

For the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 381 incidents captured by CCTV in Barnet

 

 

The largest percentage of CCTV incidents were captured in Burnt Oak (16%), Followed 
by Edgware (12%), then Golders Green (10%).  

Barn
et V

ale

Brunsw
ick

 Park

Burnt O
ak

Child
s H

ill

Colin
dale

 North

Colin
dale

 So
uth

Cric
kle

wood

East
 Barn

et

East
 Fi

nch
ley

Edgw
are

Edgw
are

bury

Fin
ch

ley C
hurch

 End

Fri
ern Barn

et

Gard
en Su

burb

Golders 
Green

Hendon

High
 Barn

et

Mill 
Hill

Totte
rid

ge
 &

 W
hetst

one

Underhill

West 
Fin

ch
ley

West 
Hendon

Whetst
one

Woodhouse

Not r
eco

rded 
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

2%

0%

16%

0%

5%

0%

7%

2%
3%

12%

2%

0% 0% 0%

10%

4% 4%

7%

0% 0%

7%

2%
1%

8%
7%

Percentage of CCTV Incidents Captured by Ward Ward
Number of 
Incidents % of incidents 

Barnet Vale 9 2%
Brunswick Park 1 0%
Burnt Oak 62 16%
Childs Hill 0 0%
Colindale North 18 5%
Colindale South 1 0%
Cricklewood 27 7%
East Barnet 6 2%
East Finchley 10 3%
Edgware 45 12%
Edgwarebury 8 2%
Finchley Church End 0 0%
Friern Barnet 1 0%
Garden Suburb 0 0%
Golders Green 40 10%
Hendon 16 4%
High Barnet 16 4%
Mill Hill 27 7%
Totteridge & Whetstone 0 0%
Underhill 0 0%
West Finchley 27 7%
West Hendon 6 2%
Whetstone 4 1%
Woodhouse 30 8%
No ward/Left Blank 27 7%
Grand Total 381 100%

26



CCTV Recorded Incidents by Ward 

15

Number of CCTV Incidents by Ward: 3 months to February 2023

For the 3 months to February 2023 there were 381 incidents captured by CCTV in Barnet

 

In Burnt Oak, the largest number of CCTV incidents captured was for Fly tipping. 
In Edgware, it was for ‘Other reasons’ (e.g. vandalism and fraud) followed by Anti- Social Behaviour, and Offensive Weapons.
In Golders Green the largest number of CCTV incidents captured was for Road Traffic Incidents and Welfare Concerns. 

LBB Ward 

Al
ar

m
 

An
ti-

So
ci

al
 B

eh
av

io
ur

Be
gg

in
g 

Bu
rg

la
ry

CC
TV

 T
as

ki
ng

Cr
im

in
al

 D
am

ag
e

Fi
re

 

Fl
y 

tip
pi

ng
 

M
ur

de
r

O
ffe

ns
iv

e 
W

ea
po

n 

O
th

er

Po
lic

e 
St

op

Pu
bl

ic
 D

is
or

de
r 

Ro
ad

 T
ra

ffi
c 

In
ci

de
nt

 

Ro
bb

er
y

Se
xu

al
 O

ffe
nc

e

Sh
op

lif
tin

g

Th
ef

t 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

Cr
im

e 

Vi
ol

en
t C

rim
e 

W
el

fa
re

 C
on

ce
rn

s

To
ta

l 

Barnet Vale 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 1 9
Brunswick Park 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Burnt Oak 0 3 1 4 1 1 0 17 0 7 3 1 5 3 2 4 0 1   2 7 62
Childs Hill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Colindale North 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 6 2 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
Colindale South 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Cricklewood 0 0 2 4 0 1 1 7 0 1 2 0 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 4 27
East Barnet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
East Finchley 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 2 0 1 2 10
Edgware 1 6 1 0 2 2 1 1 0 6 9 0 5 4 0 0 0 3 0 1 3 45
Edgwarebury 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 8
Finchley Church End 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Friern Barnet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Garden Suburb 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Golders Green 0 6 3 1 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 5 7 1 0 1 2 1 2 7 40
Hendon 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 2 2 2 0 0 1 1 1 2 16
High Barnet 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 6 2 0 1 1 0 0 1 2 16
Mill Hill 2 2 11 1 1 0 0 3 0 2 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 27
Totteridge & Whetstone 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Underhill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
West Finchley 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 1 2 1 0 0 0 2 0 3 4 27
West Hendon 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Whetstone 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1   0 0 0 0 0 1 0 4
Woodhouse 0 2 4 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 8 0 3 6 1 0 0 0 0 2 2 30
No Ward/Left Blank 1 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 1 8 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 27
Grand Total 6 31 27 11 15 6 2 30 2 29 44 3 39 48 7 6 5 12 2 17 39 381

27



CCTV Recorded Incidents cont.  

16

Proactive or Reactive Incidents: 3 months to 
February 2023

In the 3 months of December 2022 to February 2023 (incl.) there were 381 incidents captured by CCTV in Barnet

• The above pie chart shows the majority of 
CCTV incidents captured are reactive. (The 
police or the council have asked the control 
room for assistance.) 

Time of Incidents: 3 months to February 2023

• The above chart shows the quietest periods are between 
04:00am and 08:00am. 

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0
19

:0
0

20
:0

0
21

:0
0

22
:0

0
23

:0
0

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

24
25

26

23

11

16
18 18

20

28

19
21

24

17

11

22

2
4

1
0

4

15 15
17

LBB CCTV Incidents Proportions by Time:  3 months to 
February 2023

20%

80%

Proportion of Reactive vs Proactive 
CCTV Incidents

Proactive Reactive 

28



PREVENT: Number of Referrals Barnet Qtrly Comparison 

17

Trend

Quarter 3 (October-December) 2021/22 and 2022/23

There were 28 PREVENT referrals in Barnet over Qtr3. In the same quarter in 
the previous year, there were 18. 
This is an increase of 56%

Quarter 3 2022/23 compared to 2021/22 
(October-December)

In quarter 3 compared to same period the previous 
year: 
• Total referrals increased by 55.6%
• There was a 250% rise in female referrals (up 

from 2 in 2021/22 to 7 in 2022/23
• Referrals of under 18’s have increased by 

100%
• Islam Inspired referrals decreased by 30%
• Mixed, Unstable and Unclear (MUU) referrals 

increased by 71.4%

In Barnet over the two comparable quarters of 2021/22 and 2022/23, the data 
shows the majority of referrals involve:
 
• Male (75%)
• Under 18 (71%)
• MUU inspired (43%)

Total 
referrals

Under 18 Over 18 Male Female Islam 
Inspired

Far Right MUU
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

18

10
8

16

2

10

1

7

28

20

8

21

7 7
9

12

PREVENT in Barnet: (Number of referrals) Quarter 3: 
October-December

Barnet Q3 21/22 Barnet Q3 22/23

Prevent In Barnet 
Barnet Q3 
21/22

Barnet Q3 
22/23 % change 

Total referrals 18 28 55.6%

Under 18 10 20 100.0%

Over 18 8 8 0.0%

Male 16 21 31.3%

Female 2 7 250.0%

Islam Inspired 10 7 -30.0%

Far Right 1 9 800.0%

MUU 7 12 71.4%

29



PREVENT: Percentage of Referrals - National Comparison

18

Trend Barnet vs National 
Total Referrals Percentage Point 
Difference: Barnet Quarter 3 2022/23  vs 
National 2021/22. 

Quarter 3 October-December 2021/22 and 2022/23

During quarter 3 in Barnet, compared to the National 2021/22 average there was:

• +22% point difference in under 18 referrals

• 13% difference in Female referrals 

• +3% point difference in Islam inspired referrals 

• -8% point difference in Mixed, Unstable and Unclear referrals (MUU)

Under 18 Over 18 Male Female Islam Inspired Far Right MUU
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

56%

44%

89%

11%

56%

6%

39%

71%

29%

75%

25% 25%
32%

43%
49% 51%

88%

12%

22% 25%

51%

PREVENT in Barnet:  (Percentage of referrals) Quarter 3 
2021/22 and 2022/23

Barnet Q3 21/22 Barnet Q3 22/23 National 21/22

Percentage  point difference 

Qtr3 2022/23 
vs National 
2021/22

Under 18 22%

Over 18 -22%

Male -13%

Female 13%

Islam Inspired 3%

Far Right 7%

MUU -8%

30



 

 

Summary 

This report provides an overview to the Safer Communities Partnership Board on three key areas of 
Family Services delivery that cross over into the Community Safety Strategy, these are: 

• Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women & Girls  

• Violence, Vulnerability & Exploitation   

• Reducing Re-Offending 

The report sets out key progress, highlighting national initiatives, local innovation, and current/future 
challenges to delivery. 

 
Officers Recommendations  

The Safer Communities Partnership Board to consider the progress being made to reduce offending 
and tackle exploitation and violence, including violence against women & girls  

 

 

Safer Communities Partnership Board 

28 April 2023 

Title  Family Services Report on Reducing Offending and Tackling 
Violence  

Report of Chair of the Safer Communities Partnership Board 

Wards All 

Status Non-Key 

Urgent No 

Key No  

Enclosures                          None 

Officer Contact Details  Tina McElligott, Director Early Help & Children’s Social Care  
Tina.McElligott@barnet.gov.uk  

31

AGENDA ITEM 7

mailto:Tina.McElligott@barnet.gov.uk


2 
 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

1.1 To provide the Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB) with an overview of 
performance, service developments and progress of work being undertaken to reduce 
offending and tackle violence.  

 

2. BACKGROUND CONTEXT  

2.1 Officers are working with the administration to implement the Council's priorities which include:  
 

▪ Leading a community safety assessment of public spaces informed, in part, by safety audit 
walks with local residents, the police and council officers which commenced on 2 November 
2022. 

▪ A Community Safety Hubs pathfinder programme which was launched on 27 October 2022 
▪ Developing a communications plan to promote a network of safe spaces on high streets for 

women to seek help if they are in danger or experiencing abuse or harassment with a plan to 
pilot a safe spaces scheme in one area of the borough in 2023 

▪ Reviewing services with case study learning across the Council and Barnet Homes to further 
improve support  

▪ Changing attitudes and behaviour challenging harassment and hostility being tolerated, 
excused and repeated through co-production of resources with communities, schools and 
colleges. 

 

3. Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women & Girls (VAWG) 

3.1.1 The London Borough of Barnet’s Domestic Abuse (DA) and Violence Against Women & 
Girls (VAWG) Strategy 2022-25 sets out how Barnet’s Safer Communities Partnership 
(SCP) works to prevent and respond to Domestic Abuse and underlines the partnership’s 
commitment to working together to prevent and tackle all forms of violence against women 
and girls.  

3.1.2 Barnet’s strategy is aligned with the aims set out within the Government’s ‘Tackling 
Violence Against Women and Girls’ Strategy published in July 2021, the Domestic Abuse 
Act (2021) and Statutory Guidance issued under section 84 of the 2021 Act for supporting 
victims (September 2022), the London Mayor’s refreshed Violence Against Women and 
Girls Strategy 2022- 2025, the Government’s Violence Against Women and Girls refreshed 
National Statement of Expectations (a Guidance on commissioning services to support 
victims and survivors of violence against women and girls) published in March 2022. 

3.1.3 The Government’s Supporting Male Victims Position Statement (updated August 2022) 
considers the challenges faced by male victims of domestic abuse in reporting abuse and 
accessing support. The position statement sits alongside the Government’s Tackling 
VAWG Strategy (2021) and Domestic Abuse Action Plan (2022).  

3.1.4 The Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Partnership Delivery Group is a subgroup 
to the Barnet Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB) which brings together partner 
organisations in the borough to work together with the aim of preventing Domestic Abuse 
and VAWG and reduce the harm it causes to victims, their families and the wider 

32



3 
 

community. The VAWG Delivery Group agrees the VAWG Delivery Plan and monitors 
progress against the five partnership priorities within Barnet’s DA & VAWG Strategy 2022-
25, which are: 

1) Early intervention and prevention of Domestic Abuse and VAWG 
2) Support all victims and survivors to report, access help and recover  
3) Pursue perpetrators and engage them in behaviour change interventions to eliminate harm 

to victims and their families    
4) Strengthen the partnership response to improve multiagency working and information 

sharing to deliver improved outcomes  
5) Working together for safer streets, community and public spaces 

 
3.1.5 “Our vision is for all residents of Barnet, especially women and girls, to live free of domestic 

abuse and all forms of VAWG. Working with our partners, we will raise awareness and work 
to prevent violence and abuse in the home, places of learning and employment, and in the 
community. The Partnership has zero tolerance for abuse and violence, perpetrators will be 
held to account and victims and survivors will be able to access the support and help they 
need.” 

3.2  Performance and Partnership Activity Q4 2022/23 

3.2.1 Progress against the Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women & Girls (DA & VAWG) 
Strategy is underpinned by an Action Plan that is monitored and reported to the VAWG 
Delivery Group. Progress against the 108 partnership commitments within the Action Plan 
is RAG rated, the chart below set out the progress against meeting the aims of the DA & 
VAWG Strategy and demonstrates purposeful progress for year one of delivery. The DA & 
VAWG annual report will be provided to Community Leadership & Libraries Committee on 
11 May 2023. 

 
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

On Track/ Completed Needs Action Not Started

Action Status Overall Actions

33



4 
 

 

 

3.3   Delivering the DA and VAWG Strategy Q4 2022/2023 

❖ Objective 1: Early Intervention and Prevention of Domestic Abuse and VAWG  

3.3.1 Early intervention and prevention are key to reducing the amount of domestic abuse, domestic 
homicide, and suicides linked to domestic abuse and by stopping people from becoming 
perpetrators and victims to begin with. Domestic abuse devastates the lives of millions. In 
Barnet in the 12 months to Feb 2023, we had 5044 DA incidents, 3121 DA offences and 722 
DA violence with injury cases were reported to Police. The interventions set out below aim to 
address the problem by driving down domestic abuse and domestic homicide by preventing 
them from ever happening in the first place.  

❖ IRIS Programme in Barnet  

3.3.2 Existing funding arrangements for the IRIS programme ended in Q4; the continuation into 
2023/24 has been jointly funded by Barnet Public Health and North Central London 
Integrated Care Board (NCL ICB); with a total of £90k having been committed; this is a £10k 
shortfall on the previous year which will reduce capacity for refresher training.  

3.3.3 The IRIS steering committee request for investment for two advocate educators to work in 
primary care for two years has been agreed for one year at a cost of £101k and will be 
reviewed ahead of any future commitment to funding a second year. NCL ICB have 
undertaken to complete a common procurement for IRIS delivery across NCL. 

3.3.4 To complete the IRIS programme, clinical and administrative staff within the GP practice 
must complete training. There are 50 GP surgeries in Barnet, of which 28 are fully trained 
practices and a further 15 are partially trained, 7 GP Practices have not engaged. To improve 

39%
13

36%
8 26%

7

80%
8

6%
1

21%
7 27%

6

59%
16

10%
1

19%
3

39%
13

36%
8

15%
4

10%
1

75%
12

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

Early intervention and 
prevention of Domestic 

Abuse and VAWG

Support all victims and 
survivors to report, 

access help and 
recover

Pursue perpetrators 
and engage them in 
behaviour change 
interventions to 

eliminate harm to 
victims and their 

families

Strengthen the 
partnership response 

to improve multiagency 
working and 

information sharing to 
deliver improved 

outcomes

Working together for 
safer streets, 

community and public 
spaces

On Track/ Completed Needs Action Not Started

Action Status by Objective

34



5 
 

take-up, Solace has been linked with the Barnet Primary & Community Care Training Hub as 
the lead for training GP surgeries.  

3.3.5 Referrals into Solace Services from GPs in Barnet have improved with take-up of training as 
highlighted in the data below. 

 

                 Year Date Range 

Referrals to Solace 
Services from local 
GPs 

Baseline Feb 17 – Jan 18 4 

1 Feb 18 – Jan 19 53 

2 Jan 19 – Dec 19 92 

3 Jan 20 – Dec 20 79 

4 Jan 21 – Dec 21 133 

5 Jan 22 – Dec 22 113 

6 Jan 23 – March 23 38 

 

❖ Prevention in schools 

3.3.6 Public Health is mapping support, resources and training available to schools in the 
prevention of domestic and sexual abuse. Training for all Designated Safeguarding Leads 
(DSL) in schools has been requested to support recognition of domestic abuse/sexual 
abuse and the provision of information and support services for children and non-abusive 
parents.  

❖ Operation Encompass  

3.3.7 Operation Encompass is led by the Metropolitan Police (MPS) in partnership with the local 
authority and schools. The joint-agency protocol enables the Police to share information 
with schools following a reported domestic abuse incident where the police have been 
called out and a child has been present the following day.  

3.3.8 Sharing information about incidents of domestic abuse to which children have been 
exposed ensure school staff have immediate awareness so they can practice silent 
observation, assess needs and/or provide appropriate support to children and young 
people who have experienced domestic abuse. 

3.3.9 The protocol does not replace or supersede existing protocols for child safeguarding or 
welfare and is used in conjunction with current safeguarding procedures and practice 
guidelines. Schools will receive information when  

35



6 
 

▪ Police have been called out to a domestic incident 
▪ AND the child is present at the time of the incident 
▪ AND the child is Under 18 
 
3.3.10 Further information about Operation Encompass can be found Home : Operation 

Encompass; the local authority is exploring ways in which to capture and report impact on 
children in the borough. 

❖ DA/VAWG Partnership Training 

3.3.11 Four multi-agency DA training sessions were held in Q4 2022/23 and attended by 37 
practitioners. Domestic Abuse Level 1 was attended by 7 practitioners and Level 2 
Responding and Recognising Domestic Abuse was attended by 9 practitioners. DA 
MARAC training was attended by 11 practitioners and 10 practitioners attended the 
‘Understanding Coercive Control and Economic Abuse’ training. 

3.3.12 DA/VAWG training has been paused for Q1 2023/24 with the exception of MARAC training 
to allow for the completion and analysis of a training needs assessment to inform training 
requirements across the partnership for 2023/24.  

3.3.13 The VAWG team and the Barnet Safeguarding Children Partnership manager co-delivered 
an on-line briefing to the multi-agency partnership on 2 March 2023 to share learning from 
the Child Safeguarding Practice Review (CSPR) Panel Multi-agency safeguarding and 
domestic abuse paper - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).  

3.3.14 Noted within the CSPR paper is the Safe & Together Model which provides training aimed 
at changing the culture of the safeguarding system so that it responds to domestic abuse 
through an emphasis on keeping children and non-abusing parents ‘safe and together’. The 
approach focuses professionals on the behaviours of the abusive parent and the impact 
this has on children and the non-abusive parent’s relationship with the children. Barnet was 
unsuccessful in a bid for Home Office funding to roll out the model in the borough; Family 
Services are working with the Children’s Safeguarding Partnership to explore joint funding 
options to adopt the approach. 

❖ Objective 2: Support all victims and survivors to report, access help and recover 

3.4.1 Support is crucial to help all victims and survivors who have escaped from domestic abuse, 
in particular support for their health, trauma recovery, economic, housing and social needs. 
In Barnet, a range of support is available aimed at ensuring that every victim and survivor 
can get the support they need; the DA & VAWG team monitors delivery of services and 
identified needs to ensure these are reflected in in planning and delivery aims. 

❖ Commissioned Services  

3.4.2 Barnet Council commissions Solace Women’s Aid to deliver Advocacy and Support 
Services and two women’s refuges. The services are monitored quarterly through the 
provision of data, feedback and case studies.  

3.4.3 Solace Advocacy and Support Service received 374 referrals in Q4, 2022/23 bringing the 
total referrals for the year to 1251; this exceeds their annual target of 1200.  

36

https://www.operationencompass.org/
https://www.operationencompass.org/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multi-agency-safeguarding-and-domestic-abuse-paper
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/multi-agency-safeguarding-and-domestic-abuse-paper


7 
 

3.4.4 The Q4 referral volume represents a 51% increase from Q3. Of the Q4 referrals, 6 (1.6%) 
declined support, 3 service-users identified as LBGT+ and 4 male victims accessed the 
service. 11 (2.9%) service-users reported as having no recourse to public funds and 66 
(17.6%) service-users reported a mental health need. 

❖ Women’s Refuges 

3.4.5 Solace Women’s Aid are commissioned by Barnet Council to provide support and manage 
two women’s refuges in Barnet.   

3.4.6 A third women’s refuge (Minerva House) is run by Barnet Homes who have been 
successful in securing £100,000 of funding from the Department of Levelling Up, Housing & 
Communities to support the continuation of the Minerva House provision in 2023/24 

3.4.7 28 women caring for 19 children were supported across the 3 Barnet refuges in Q4 2022/23 

❖ Domestic Abuse Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC)     

MARAC Q1 
22/23 

Q2 22/23 Q3 
22/23 

Q4 22/23 Apr 2022-
Mar 2023 
Total  

Number of 
MARAC 
referrals 

87 123 122 145 477 

Number of 
children in the 
household 

51 64 68 111 294 

Number of 
families with 
children 

38 48 37 64 187 

Number of 
repeat MARAC 
referrals 

9 22 19 35 85 

Percentage of 
repeat MARAC 
referrals 

10% 18% 16% 24% 17% 

 

3.4.8 MARAC referrals have increased each quarter during 2022/23 with Q4 reporting the highest 
volume. The number of children exposed to domestic abuse has also increased; in Q4; the 

37



8 
 

increase represents 23 individual victims caring for a total of 43 children. Repeat referrals to 
MARAC also increased by 8% in Q4; the VAWG Delivery Group will explore increase in 
volume to better understand the drivers. 

3.4.9 There has been a 12% increase in victims reporting mental health needs, rising to 80% of 
all victims referred to MARAC in Q4. The VAWG team are in discussion with mental health 
commissioners, providers and specialist DA services to improve mental health pathways 
and support for DA survivors; this work will link with development towards a General Mental 
Health Charter.   

3.4.10 Victims who identify as female represented 87.6% of referrals to MARAC in Q4, and 87.3% 
of alleged perpetrators in the same reporting period identified as male. The victim’s partner 
was the identified perpetrator in 36% of referrals, matching the reported percentage for ex-
partners. Male children accounted for 5% of referrals to DA MARAC. 

3.4.11 Barnet’s DA consultant is leading a review of the DA MARAC based on the Safe Lives 
review tool. 7 of the 10 Safe Lives principles will be reviewed focusing on identification of 
risk, multi-agency engagement/information sharing, safeguarding high-risk victims and their 
children/vulnerable adults, representation for victims and access to IDVA support, and the 
quality of multi-agency action plans to address risk, manage perpetrator behaviour and 
safeguard victims and their children and/or vulnerable adults.  

3.4.12 Alongside the review of MARAC, Family Services are leading a multi-agency audit of a 
sample of MARAC victims with caring responsibility for children to identify good practice 
and areas for learning and improvement. This is due for reporting to the VAWG Delivery 
Group in July 2023. 

❖ Housing support for victims 

3.4.13 There were 147 homelessness approaches due to domestic abuse in Q4 2022/23. Of 
these, 29 were provided temporary accommodation (TA). Housing options include refuge 
accommodation, sanctuary installations to make victims’ homes safer, move to private 
sector properties, move through the North London DA reciprocal scheme and for single 
applicants housing in the private rented sector. Some victims also prefer to remain with 
friends or family until they secure suitable accommodation and refuse TA as they want to 
minimise the number of moves whilst awaiting alternative housing.  

3.4.14 The Barnet Homes Sanctuary Scheme helps victims of domestic abuse who live in Barnet, 
to remain in their own home, if it is safe to do so, by increasing the security at their home. In 
Q4, 34 referrals for sanctuary installations were received and 20 sanctuary installations 
were completed. 

3.4.15 Barnet Homes dedicated DA Team within the Housing Options Service manages the most 
complex and high-risk housing cases for DA survivors, from the initial assessment of 
survivors’ and their children’s needs and their placement in safe accommodation, to their 
move-on and resettlement in long-term accommodation. At each point, floating support is 
available to hand-hold individuals through their recovery and resettlement pathway. The 
team support survivors to access DA services, and are a consistent, supportive presence to 

38



9 
 

aid the recovery of those who face complex issues and additional barriers. In Q4, the DA 
Team supported 23 victims with multiple needs and assessed as high and medium risk.  

❖ Child & Family Early Help Services: AVA CODA (Children overcoming domestic 
abuse), Mother and Children’s groups and 1:1  

3.4.16 In Q4, 5 women attended the CODA/AVA Women’s Group and 7 children attended the CODA 
Children’s Group. The initial referrals for both groups were in double figures prior to start of the 
group, but some families withdrew or had a change of circumstances ahead of the group start 
date. In the Women’s Group, the children were aged between 3-11yrs and in the Children’s 
Group, the children were aged between 9-11yrs 

3.4.17 The AVA/CODA Group programme is not suitable for all families; some children may have 
special needs or be outside of the age-group for the particular programme, and some women 
may not be group-ready, or need an interpreter. In these instances, CODA trained practitioners 
offer support on a 1:1 basis. 

3.4.18 There have been no repeat referrals to Family Services for any of the women or children who 
have participated in the groups in Q4. Women attending the group have shared that having the 
opportunity to connect with other women who have similar lived experience through the group 
has a positive impact. 

3.4.19 In the west locality Children and Family Early Help Hub, practitioners have adapted the 
AVA/CODA materials to be more culturally appropriate to women from a Muslim background 
following consultation with community leaders and the women using services. 

3.4.20 In the summer term, the Hub is also planning to pilot a AVA/CODA group aimed at teenagers 
who are currently offered 1:1 support or are referred to Safer Spaces Plus. 

 

❖ Child & Family Early Help Reducing Parental Conflict programme. 

3.4.21 Since April 2022, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) has funded the Reducing 
Parental Conflict (RPC) Programme in Barnet. The RPC Programme has now been extended for 
a further 3 years with the provision of £45k year 1 funding being made available to develop the 
workforce, raise awareness of the impact of parental conflict and develop interventions to support 
families 

3.4.22 In Q4, ten 2-hour virtual awareness-raising sessions on ‘How and why to be curious about 
parental conflict’ were delivered to a range of practitioners across Family Services and partner 
agencies, including VAWG providers. 2 workshops were delivered specifically to school-based 
staff, 1 for health professionals and 1 for Police; the other six were open to all agencies. 

3.4.23 56 practitioners attended the workshops from both statutory and non-statutory agencies and a 
virtual abridged version is being developed for the Barnet Safeguarding Children Partnership 
website. 

3.4.24 In February, face-to-face refresher training was provided to 19 RPC champions and Early Help 
Practitioners in the use of structured interventions, produced by Amity Relationships for parents 
together and parents apart.   

39



10 
 

3.4.25 In Q4 Amity Relationships were commissioned to deliver 2 half-day training courses aimed at 
multi-agency practitioners on ‘Understanding the Difference Between Domestic Abuse and 
Parental Conflict’. The sessions were attended by 16 professionals from Children’s Social Care, 
Early Help, Health, Education, Probation, Voluntary Sector and VAWG agencies. 

3.4.26 In March, Tavistock Relationships delivered 2 virtual training courses on the Mentalization 
approach when working with parents where there is a higher level of conflict. The course was 
attended by 20 practitioners from across Family Services and Child & Adolescent Mental Health 
Services.  

3.4.27 The Early Help IDVA is supporting identification of appropriate referrals to the Parental Conflict 
Programme and a newly developed webpage for Child & Family Early Help Services with a 
hyperlink to the Barnet VAWG webpage for parents alongside a range of useful weblinks, self-
help manuals and access to animations is aimed at helping parents consider the experience of 
children and makes clear the difference between Domestic Abuse and Parental Conflict 
Reducing parental conflict | Barnet Council.  

 

❖ Objective 3: Pursue Perpetrators and Engage them in behaviour change  

3.5.1 Perpetrators of domestic abuse need to change their behaviour and stop offending. The 
relentless pursuit of perpetrators will drive down and reduce the number of domestic violence 
incidents and homicides. This requires better understanding and measures to address the low 
number of charges, prosecutions, and convictions against perpetrators and also continued 
investment in interventions and programmes that change behaviour in the long-term. 
 

3.5.2 In Barnet, the police have issued 26 Domestic Violence Prevention Notices (DVPN) and 22 
Domestic Violence Protection Orders (DVPO) in the 12 month period to March 2023. 

3.5.3 In Q4 2022/23, there were: 

▪ 23 reports of threats to disclose intimate images or DA offences. 

▪ 15 requests for Clare’s Law disclosures at DA MARAC an increase from 8 requests in Q3. 

▪ A reduction in body-worn cameras used in DA calls to 65% from 75% reported in September 
2022. 

3.5.4 The table below highlights the volume of DA incidents and offences reported in Barnet: 

Barnet DA Incidents DA Offences 
DA Violence 
with Injury 

12 months to Feb 2022 5185 3262 747 

12 months to Feb 
2023 5044 3121 722 

40

https://www.barnet.gov.uk/children-and-families/early-help-children-young-people-and-families/reducing-parental-conflict


11 
 

Change 
Decrease 
(2.7%) 

Decrease 
(4.3%) 

Decrease 
(3.3%) 

 

 

 

3.5.5 In the 12-month period to February 2023, Barnet is ranked third lowest against all London 
boroughs with a rate of 12.0 DA Incidents per 1000 population.  

3.5.6 In the same reporting period, the rate of DA incidents that become DA Offences is 62% and 
Barnet had the 2nd highest sanction detection rate of all London boroughs for Domestic 
Abuse Offences at 13.5%, up from 12.3% in Q3. For Domestic Abuse Violence with injury 
(VWI), Barnet has the 4th highest sanction detection rate at 11.7%, up from 10.7% in Q3. 

 

 

 

9.1

11.6
12.3 12.0

12.4
12.3

13.2
13.3

13.7
14.2

14.8
14.9

14.7
15.0

15.1
15.6

15.7
16.3

16.5
16.7

16.8
17.0

17.3
17.7

18.2
18.2

18.8
19.6

19.7
20.0

20.6

23.5

Ri
ch

m
on

d 
up

on
 T

ha
m

es
Ki

ng
st

on
 u

po
n 

Th
am

es
W

an
ds

w
or

th
Ba

rn
et

Ha
rr

ow
Br

om
le

y
Ke

ns
in

gt
on

 &
 C

he
lse

a
Ca

m
de

n
M

er
to

n
So

ut
hw

ar
k

Su
tt

on
La

m
be

th
Ha

m
m

er
sm

ith
 &

 F
ul

ha
m

W
es

tm
in

st
er

Re
db

rid
ge

Be
xl

ey
W

al
th

am
 F

or
es

t
Br

en
t

Hi
lli

ng
do

n
Ea

lin
g

Ha
rin

ge
y

Ha
ve

rin
g

Ha
ck

ne
y

En
fie

ld
N

ew
ha

m
Is

lin
gt

on
Le

w
ish

am
Cr

oy
do

n
Ho

un
slo

w
Gr

ee
nw

ic
h

To
w

er
 H

am
le

ts
Ba

rk
in

g 
&

 D
ag

en
ha

m

Domestic Abuse Incidents/ 1000 pop

0

5

10

15

Le
wish

am
Bexle

y

Cam
den

Hilli
ngd

on

Hari
nge

y

Croyd
on

Bark
ing &

 

Dag
enham

Hounslo
w

Harr
ow

Enfie
ld

Kensin
gto

n...

Newham

Wan
dsw

orth

Merto
n

La
mbeth

So
uthwark

SD Domestic Abuse % SD Domestic Abuse VWI %

Sanction Detection Rates (%) for DA Offences

41



12 
 

❖ RISE Mutual CIC 

3.5.7 Barnet Council commissions RISE Mutual CIC to provide perpetrator programmes aimed at 
achieving long term behaviour change.  

3.5.8 The Rise Perpetrator Programme commissioned by Family Services is aimed at reducing 
re-offending and repeat victimisation, following a successful procurement exercise, RISE 
has been awarded a further 3-year contract that started January 2023.The programme uses 
proven evidence-based approaches for behaviour change, helps perpetrators to take 
positive and tangible steps to prevent re-offending and works with victim partners to aid 
recovery. 

3.5.9 RISE received 22 new referrals in Q4 and 22 new Child on Parent Violence referrals, an 
increase of 12 on the previous quarter. 44 perpetrators were offered an initial appointment 
in Q4 of which 36 were assessed (22 adult perpetrators and 14 child on parent 
perpetrators). 30 were assessed as suitable for intervention. RISE currently has 35 active 
adult perpetrators and 33 active child on parent perpetrators engaged in direct work. 

3.5.10 The graph below shows the overall progress made by the Adult/Young Perpetrator service 
users. 

 

 

❖ RISE Culturally Integrated Family Approach (CIFA) Perpetrator Programme  

3.5.11 The CIFA pilot was scheduled to end on 31/3/23 and a cut-off was agreed from mid-
November for new referrals. RISE positively worked with referrers to secure men’s 
engagement post-March and following a successful bid led by Barnet and in partnership 
with 9 other boroughs (Brent, Harrow, Newham, Tower Hamlets, Haringey, Enfield, 
Hammersmith & Fulham, Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea and Westminster) a 
further 2 years of funding totalling £1.46m, has been awarded for 2023-25. 

3.5.12 RISE practitioners report high levels of poverty, trauma, homelessness, and isolation as 
exhibited by CIFA men; many are reported to have more than one job and to be working 
long hours on low pay, some have responsibilities to send money home to family in their 
country of origin. These stressors can impact behaviour and responses towards partners 
and children.  

85%
85%

100%
85%

100%
92%

15%
15%

0%
15%

0%
8%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Taking responsibility

Safe actions and reactions

Being a good father

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Made Progress Same Dropped Back

How much progress are people making in each outcome 
area?

42



13 
 

3.5.13 CIFA findings demonstrate an increase in markers of progress, with 83% of service users 
having made progress with regard to taking responsibility (with 13% static at the point of the 
assessment and 3% dropping back.) In the previous quarter 80% were making progress in 
this area so the upward trend continues.   

❖ Objective 4: Strengthen the partnership response to improve multi-agency working 
and information sharing to deliver improved outcomes.  

3.6.1 The whole of society needs to work together to reduce the prevalence of domestic abuse, 
domestic homicide, and suicides linked to domestic abuse, and deliver the best possible 
outcomes for victims and survivors. Domestic abuse cases must be identified quicker and in 
greater numbers. In Barnet, we are working to improve collaboration and coordination 
between and within organisations.  

3.6.2 #HearMyVoice is a campaign initiative which addresses various aspects of VAWG and DA, 
a collaboration between the council, Middlesex University and DA & VAWG partners from 
across the borough. with a specific focus on capturing the local context of the borough and 
in particular the narratives of individuals, groups and organisations in the community which 
will be amplified though the delivery of a range of outputs.  

3.6.3 On 24 May 2023, Middlesex University student’s work will be showcased including projects 
where they have partnered with Barnet DA/VAWG community providers. The aim of the 
event is also to bring Barnet partners together to share knowledge and experience, build 
connections, and renew our shared commitment to working together to address DA and 
VAWG in the borough; planning is going well. 

3.6.4 The VAWG Delivery Group meet quarterly to oversee delivery against the aims of the DA & 
VAWG Strategy, by measuring data, analyzing local performance and identifying best 
practice the partnership can drive the Action Plan towards completion and identify issues 
early for consideration of the multi-agency partnership.  

3.6.5 Barnet’s One Stop Shop (OSS) resumed face to face drop-in services in February 2023; the 
impact of this on referrals and service take up will be monitored and reported. The OSS is 
led by Barnet Homes in partnership with Barnet council, Solace Women’s Aid, Asian 
Women’s Resource Centre, private solicitor firms, Barnet Magistrate and many other 
agencies. The OSS had 85 referrals in Q4 bringing the total for the year to 391 The demand 
for service over time is set out in the chart below.  

 

324

456 486
442

399
361 391

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

DA One Stop Shop (OSS) Demand

43



14 
 

 

❖ Objective 5: Working together for safer streets, community and public spaces.  

3.7.1 This objective aims for all Barnet residents to feel safe out in the community by working 
together to reduce Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) and raising awareness  

❖ Safer Spaces   

3.7.2 The government published the Protection from Sex-based Harassment in Public Bill 2022-
23 on 22 March 2023 for a third and final reading on 24 March 2023. The Bill would 
introduce a new offence causing intentional harassment, alarm or distress to a person in 
public where the behaviour is done because of that person’s sex. This will be considered 
for local education, action and awareness raising once the Bill has passed through 
Parliament. 

3.7.3 A transformation project lead has been appointed to develop a Safer Spaces Network 
Pilot and will reach out to engage local businesses, town planners, housing providers, 
open spaces and a range of council services.  

❖ Mayor’s Women’s Night Safety Charter. 

3.7.4 Barnet Council has signed up to the Mayor’s Women’s Night Safety Charter. The 
resources and training through the charter will be linked to the Safer Spaces Network Pilot 
for business operating in the night-time in the borough.  

❖ Survivor forum and Survivors voices  

3.7.5 The scoping for setting up a survivor forum is in progress. The process of setting up is 
mindful of the need for co-production with survivors from across the borough and to give 
voice to survivors in through a range of platforms. It is intended that the approach will 
provide a space for the voices of survivors to be heard more consistently and acted upon, 
and for the commissioners to hear the survivors’ voice across the commissioning cycle. 

❖ VAWG events led by Barnet Safer Transport Police across the borough  

3.7.6 Barnet Safer Transport Team run bi-monthly Violence Against Women and Girls events, 
providing advice and support on female personal and travel safety 

3.7.7 In partnership with local resident’s and women's groups, a series of intelligence-led 
locations across the borough have been identified in which the Barnet Safer Transport 
Team can engage with commuters and members of the public between March to August 
2023 with the aim of encouraging members of the public to interact with the team on 
improving women's safety. 

❖ Domestic Homicide Review  

3.7.8 When a death occurs as a result of domestic abuse, there is a statutory requirement to 
conduct a multi-agency Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) to identify what changes can 
be made to reduce the risk of similar incidents happening in the future. The purpose of 
Domestic Homicide Reviews is not to assign blame or responsibility but to understand 

44



15 
 

what lessons there are to be learned and make recommendations based on those 
lessons as to how we can better work together to prevent future homicides. 

3.7.9 Two Statutory Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) are being finalised by an Independent 
Chair following submission to the Barnet Safer Communities Partnership (BSCP) in 
January 2023.  These are the cases of ‘Duncan’ (pseudonym, a male victim), who was, in 
October 2018, killed by his partner and ‘Alyssa’ (pseudonym, a female victim) killed by her 
partner in March 2019. The DHR Chair has amended the reports following partnership 
feedback to ensure recommendations are consistent with current practice; these reports 
will now be submitted to Home Office. 

 

4. Tackling Violence   

4.1.1 Barnet Family Services is currently leading a Strategic Needs Assessment of Serious 
Violence in the Borough in response to the requirements of the Serious Violence Duty set out 
in the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Act 2022 (PCSC Act 2022) which came into 
force in January 2023. Progress in completing the SNA will be reported to the Safer 
Community Partnership Board as a stand-alone item. The Strategic Needs Assessment will 
inform the development of a Serious Violence Strategy for the borough to be completed and 
published in 2024.  

4.1.2 The Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Act 2022 introduced a requirement on the police 
and local authorities in England and Wales and Integrated Care Boards in England and local 
health boards in Wales, to review the circumstances of certain homicides where the victim 
was aged 18 or over and where the events surrounding their death involved, or were likely to 
have involved, the use of an offensive weapon. 

4.1.3 The purpose of these reviews is to ensure that when a qualifying homicide takes place, local 
partners identify the lessons to be learnt from the death, consider whether any action should 
be taken as a result and share the outcome. The intention is that these reviews will improve 
the national and local understanding of what causes homicide and serious violence, better 
equipping services to prevent weapons-enabled homicides. 

4.1.4 Barnet is a participating borough in the Offensive Weapon Homicide Review pilot. the other 
pilot areas are the West Midlands, South Wales and in London (NW BCU (Barnet, Brent, 
Harrow) and Central South BCU (Lambeth and Southwark). Guidance for undertaking 
Offensive Weapon Homicide Reviews was published on 29 March 2023 Offensive weapons 
homicide reviews - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).   

4.1.5 The Offensive Weapon Homicide Review process is for adult victims and largely mirrors the 
existing Domestic Homicide Review process; it will be led by the Community Safety 
Team.  Child victims of Offensive Weapon Homicides will continue to be subject to Critical 
Learning Reviews (Youth Justice) or Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews where criteria is 
met.  

4.1.6 Barnet Family Services coordinates a monthly Serious Adult Violence (SAV) Panel which has 
been established since May 2020. It is a multi-agency panel that acts as a bridge between 
children and adult services enabling connections to be made in relation to adults and children 

45

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Foffensive-weapons-homicide-reviews&data=05%7C01%7CTina.McElligott%40Barnet.gov.uk%7C352ee79eba264a525d3708db36aa0182%7C1ba468b914144675be4f53c478ad47bb%7C0%7C0%7C638163876012705502%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=R42oLNwP%2FMOgZo2hCNr6Xz%2F32ZG7a%2Fh%2F2FeATKaVVd4%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Foffensive-weapons-homicide-reviews&data=05%7C01%7CTina.McElligott%40Barnet.gov.uk%7C352ee79eba264a525d3708db36aa0182%7C1ba468b914144675be4f53c478ad47bb%7C0%7C0%7C638163876012705502%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=R42oLNwP%2FMOgZo2hCNr6Xz%2F32ZG7a%2Fh%2F2FeATKaVVd4%3D&reserved=0


16 
 

who are at risk of involvement in violent offending. The SAV panel aims to provide a 
partnership approach to risk management of individuals involved in serious violence and 
assist youth to adult transitions. The SAV forum discusses approximately 10 individuals per 
month.  

4.1.7 The SAV panel continues to undertake case consultations. In Q4 2022/23, 12 individuals 
were discussed. 4 of which were care experienced adults, 6 were referred by Probation, 1 
was referred by Youth Justice Services and the other was referred by the BVCH. 11 of the 
referred individuals are aged between 18-25 years, with one aged 26 years.  50% of 
individuals were considered to be gang-involved based on information provided by attending 
agency representatives. 

4.1.8 The Family Services Violence, Vulnerability & Exploitation Team hold oversight for 
coordinated delivery of a range of services aimed at reducing youth and adult violence and 
supporting victims. A number of programmes are delivered across Early Help, Children’s 
Social Care and Youth Justice Services, often in partnership with wider agencies that engage 
young people in both prevention, diversion and risk reduction interventions.  

❖ Serious Incident Response Meetings 

4.2.1 In Q4, there were 11 Serious Incidents Response Meetings (SIRM) held, only one was in 
relation to an out of borough incident which is a shift from Q3 where incidents predominately 
occurred out of the borough. This volume is an increase from Q2 and Q3 data where 8 
SIRM’s were recorded respectively.   

4.2.2 In Q4, 75% of meetings held following a serious incident resulted in a SIRM being held, 8% 
were Child Protection Strategy Meetings and the remaining 17% were discussed at Serious 
Adult Violence Panel.  

4.2.3 In Q4, knife crime was the most common type of incident accounting for almost half of all 
SIRM’s held in which a Barnet young person was the victim or suspect. Gun-related incidents 
accounted for 28% of Q4 SIRM’s; the increase is a concern, particularly as a number of 
firearm discharges occurred at residential addresses. The Safer Communities Partnership will 
consider actions to reduce gun crime in the borough in the statutory partnership working 
group. 

4.2.4 Aggravated burglary is a recorded offence type leading to a SIRM in Q4; this offence type has 
not previously been reported in SIRM data for 2022/23. 

4.2.5 The 11 SIRM’s held were relative to 17 young people and young adults who were either a 
victim or suspect in the incident, 61% of young people were considered suspects in the 
incident rather than victim. However, in Q4 a new category was introduced as 22% of young 
people involved in incidents during the reporting period have been identified as both a victim 
and suspect in the incident. The quarter data also reflects a higher rate of multiple individuals 
being involved in single incidents. 

 

 

46



17 
 

❖ Victim Care Hub  

4.3.1 Barnet Family Services developed a Victim Coordinator role with London Crime Prevention 
Funding (LCPF) to strengthen the support for direct and indirect victims of violent offending 
and to plug the gap created by the cessation of the Young Persons Victim Support Service 
in March 2022. A Barnet Victim Care Hub (BVCH) is now established. 

4.3.2 The Victim Coordinator started post in September 2022 and has been working with partner 
agencies to support victims of crime and assist identification and signposting to services 
including housing and trauma therapy in line with the Victims Code of Practice.  

4.3.3 The Victim Coordinator was establishing a multi-agency network panel to support joined-up 
recovery plans and a community-based hub for drop-in support. The post holder has also 
been providing advice, guidance, onward referral, and support for personal safety and 
safety around the home. 

4.3.4 Throughout Q4, BVCH has raised awareness of the services available and the referral 
pathway to access these. This has resulted in a steady flow of referrals from a range of 
sources.  

4.3.5 A total of 34 referrals were made in Q4, exceeding the target of 24. Family Services (Early 
Help and Social Care) made the highest volume of referrals and Serious Incident Response 
Meetings triggered 8 referrals.  

 

4.3.6 The referred victims were largely adults who accounted for 27 of the referrals made. 18 
victims identified as male and 16 identified as female. Reporting is in development to 
capture wider victim demographics which will assist a better understanding of the 
communities that are most impacted by crime and inform the development of support. 

4.3.7 Reported crimes against referred victims are largely relative to threats of violence, the use 
of offensive weapons and assault. A pro-active and rapid response triage service to identify 
victim needs following an incident of violent crime has enabled a multi-agency and 
contextual safeguarding approach to providing support, including the provision of 
emergency accommodation, safety planning, personal and home security equipment, 
emotional/trauma support and support for vulnerable adults in navigating the criminal justice 
system.    

4.3.8 The referred victims had reported the crime to the Police and were assisting investigations, 
information was not available for 8 of the victims referred and one had not reported the 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Referrals Q4 2022/23

Family Services

SIRM

Police

Community Safety

Probation

Serious Adult Violence Panel

DWP

47



18 
 

crime to Police. This is an encouraging and improving picture when compared to Q3 in 
which 27 victims were either not assisting the investigation or this information was not 
known. 

4.3.9 The Victim Code of Practice and information about the support available was shared with 30 
referred victims who were successfully triaged. The table below sets out the types of 
support identified. The BVCH provided support for non-crime related needs when identified 
i.e. provision of food vouchers through a partnership with the local branch of the Trussell 
Trust in Colindale.    

4.3.10 Types of support provided to Victims Q4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3.11 A series of training sessions were held by the BVCH in Q4 delivered to the Department of 
Work and Pensions, Probation Services, and Colindale Community Trust.  In addition, two 
community and co-production events have been delivered with Age UK and the Parkhurst 
Residents Association to promote reporting, safety planning, increasing access to support 
and feelings of safety.   

4.3.12 A Victim Response Panel is in development that will provide a coordinated and multi-
agency response for supporting victims on the periphery of the Criminal Justice System. 
The terms of reference are currently in draft and will be finalized at the first multi-agency 
meeting planned for Q1 2023/24.  

4.3.13 The BVCH has commissioned UK Advice Finder which provides a comprehensive database 
of advice & support giving organisations. The BVCH can access an online portal to seek 
and identify local, regional, and national support services that can be shared with victims 
and partners which meets Right 4 of the Victim Code of Practice ‘To be referred to services 
that support victims and have services and support tailored to their needs”  

4.3.14 Calm Mediation has also been commissioned to deliver community mediation services for 
up to 10 cases in 2023/24 where on-going neighbour disputes have escalated to anti-social 
behaviour by both parties.  

4.3.15 BVCH has three reportable performance outcomes which are set out below. The service is 
on track to achieve targets and progress will be reported to the SCPB quarterly in 2023/24 

 

 

VCOP  Personal 
safety 
advice & 
security  

Home 
safety 
advice 
& 
security  

Emotional 
support/trauma 
support  

Signposting/Information 
provision  

Food 
voucher  

Onward 
referral   

30  15  13  21  26  5  9  

48



19 
 

❖ Performance Outcome 1   

Outcome: To Improve Victim Satisfaction and feelings of safety across the Borough   

Measure: MOPAC Quarterly Performance update and report   

Baseline: Currently at 64% pan London 2020-21   

Target: An increase of 10-15%  

❖ Performance Outcome 2   

Outcome: Victims receive better support from the Police and CJS including in   online 
interaction   

Measure: Increase proportion of people supporting investigation   

Baseline: The proportion of offences that were closed as a result of evidential 
difficulties and victims not supporting action increased from 35 - 40% from 
last year (Crime Outcomes 2020-21)   

Target: That locally Barnet will work to a reduction of cases closed due to 
evidential difficulties by 10%  

❖ Performance Outcome 3 (optional)   

Outcome: Increase of the use of the Victims Code of Practice revised 2021  

Measure: Right 1 and Right 4 of VCOP to be met through the Hub  

Baseline: 20% of victims had heard of the Victims code of Practice or received any 
rights ONS  

Target: An increase of 10- 15%  

   

4.3.16 In May 2022, the Ministry of Justice published a draft Victim’s Bill alongside a wider 
package of measures to improve victims' experiences of the criminal justice system. 
The Victims and Prisoners Bill was formally introduced to Parliament on 29 March 2023.  

4.3.17 The Bill will place a duty on criminal justice bodies, including youth justice services to collect 
data and keep their compliance with the Victims’ Code under review at a local level. The Bill 
will require Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) to take a convening role in monitoring 
local compliance with the Victims’ Code. 

4.3.18 It is envisaged that PCCs will collate Victims’ Code compliance data and chair regular 
discussions with the relevant criminal justice bodies to analyse compliance at a local level, 
i.e. in each PCC’s police area. 

4.3.19 The MoJ is developing metrics to set out the minimum dataset criminal justice bodies must 
collect, which will be set out in regulations which sit alongside the Bill. This has been 

49

https://youthjusticeboard.newsweaver.co.uk/yots2/zzwt9ipx9en18our2f9dq2/external?a=6&p=62886155&t=21098835
https://youthjusticeboard.newsweaver.co.uk/yots2/rxzh7xrqefr18our2f9dq2/external?a=6&p=62886155&t=21098835


20 
 

coordinated with the new key performance indicator on victims, to try and minimise the 
burden on youth justice services and ensure only one set of data needs to be collected. 

4.3.20 The Bill also places a legislative duty on specified criminal justice bodies "To take 
reasonable steps to promote awareness of the Victims’ Code amongst (a) Victims using 
services; (b) General public". Supporting guidance is awaited.  

❖ Restorative Justice  

4.4.1 A Restorative Justice Coordinator (RJC) started in post in December 2022, alongside the 
Victim Coordinator, the role was created with three-year London Crime Prevention Funding 
2022 – 2025. The creation of the post aims to provide training in conflict resolution skills to 
schools and community-based providers and build a network of Restorative Justice 
Champions that can support a sustained and embedded approach to conflict resolution 
across the borough. 

4.4.2 Restorative Justice (RJ) interventions have a strong evidence base for achieving good 
outcomes, in a survey conducted by Remedi Restorative Solutions (2021), 94% of victims of 
crime reported an increase in their feelings of safety following a RJ intervention, while in the 
Why Me? Valuing Victims Report (2020), over half of victims reported being better able to 
cope with aspects of life such as health and wellbeing following an intervention. 

4.4.3 RJ interventions can be offered to perpetrators of crime regardless of the complexity or 
gravity of the offence (All-Party Parliamentary Group Inquiry into Restorative Practices 
2021/22). A research paper published by Remedi Restorative Services (2021) shows that 
98% of offenders taking part in RJ interventions reported an increase in their personal 
understanding of the harm caused by their offending behaviour and furthermore, 96% of 
offenders stated that participation directly increased their motivation to not reoffend. 

4.4.4 The RJC role complements the restorative practice of the Youth Justice Service which is 
supporting victims to meet with those that have perpetrated crime against them allowing 
space for reflection, apology, and reparation.  

4.4.5 Over 2023/24 the RJC will provide bespoke training in restorative approaches to a range of 
school and community-based services and establish a RJ Network, led by RJ Champions 
with the aim of increasing capacity for schools and community-based services to facilitate 
restorative interventions whilst also creating opportunities for learning, collaboration and the 
sharing of good practice.  

4.4.6 The RJC will also work with partners in the criminal justice system to open referral routes 
and access to RJ for victims of crime, thereby meeting the requirements of the Code of 
Practice for Victims of Crime (2021) by explicitly informing victims of crime of their right to 
RJ and, where possible, delivering a suitable RJ intervention directly or by onward referral 
to the RJ Network.   

4.4.7 Barnet Council is currently seeking Restorative Justice Council (RJC) membership which 
will support risk and safety planning, provide access to advice and training, good practice 
and information to the wide network of restorative communities.  In the long term (Year 3 of 
delivery) the aim is to achieve accreditation as a Registered Restorative Organisation 

50



21 
 

(RRO). Organisations can review membership criteria and/or apply at Restorative Justice 
Council | Promoting quality restorative practice for everyone 

4.4.8 The discovery phase of the RJ Project has identified areas for consideration which include:  

▪ clarity on how victims are informed of their right to RJ under the Code of Practice 
for Victims, 

▪ ascertaining the level of training required and/or capacity of agencies to facilitate 
RJ conferences,  

▪ creating a sustainable model beyond the life of the project and; 

▪ Measuring impact of RJ interventions across the Network  

4.4.9 These areas for consideration will be explored with key stakeholders as the service 
develops and embeds.  

4.4.10 In Q4, 5 referrals were made by the Barnet Victim Care Hub with 100% of victims advised of 
their right to RJ and given an opportunity to access RJ.  

4.4.11 Large scale training has been offered via the Barnet Head Teacher Forum and Barnet 
Education and Learning Service which is being designed and delivered by the RJ Co-
ordinator.  To date, 10 schools have requested training which includes a Parent/Carer 
session aimed at engaging the school community in the use of restorative tools to de-
escalate conflict.  

4.4.12 Recent restorative-led events in the community have been positively received and the team 
will continue to build on this success. 

4.4.13 Whilst training is being prepared and delivered, Calm Mediation, who facilitate RJ 
Conferences across London and who are commissioned to support the BVCH, are 
supporting demand. 

4.4.14 Awareness of the RJ project continues to be raised by attendance at Risk Panels and 
internal/external forums and meetings; this will continue into 2023/24 alongside delivery of 
training. Quarterly RJ Champion network meetings are due to commence at the end of April 
2023 and the BVCH resources are being modified to explicitly reference RJ and signpost.  

4.4.15 The project reports performance against three outcomes detailed below, outcomes will be 
reported quarterly to the SCPB throughout 2023/24   

❖ Performance Outcome 1 

Outcomes: Victims receive better support from the police and CJS, including online 
interaction 

Measure:  Improvement in victim satisfaction, feeling of safety and/or emotional wellbeing. 

Target: An increase of 10-15% akin to Q1 2020/2021 data when it was 76%. 

51

https://restorativejustice.org.uk/
https://restorativejustice.org.uk/


22 
 

Q4 Data – MOPAC Dashboard 

Victim satisfaction for NW London is 65%, an increase of 4%. Pan London, the figure has 
increased from 63% to 66%. 

❖ Performance Outcome 2 

 

 

❖ Performance Outcome 3 (optional) 

Outcome: Increase of the use of the Code of Practice for Victims (revised 2021). 

Measure: Right 1, 3 and 4 of Victim Code of Practice is met through RJ 

Baseline: 20% of victims have heard of the Code of Practice for Victims or received 
any rights (ONS). 

Target: An increase of 10- 15%. 

 

5. Reducing Offending 

5.1 Barnet Integrated Offender Management  

5.1.1 Integrated Offender Management (IOM) is a multi-agency non-statutory national framework 
for managing prolific, persistent & violent offenders, it features prominently in the London 
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) Police & Crime Plan 2021-2025, HM 
Government Neighbourhood Crime IOM Strategy (December 2020), HM Prison and 
Probation Service (HMPPS) National Operational Guidance April 2021 and HMPPS 
Probation London Reducing Reoffending Plan 2022-2025. 

5.1.2 The previous London IOM model did not take into account risk of violence and did not 
provide a reliable system for consistent decision making across London. As the number of 
individuals who were eligible for IOM grew >39% between 2013 and 2019; the number of 
individuals in IOM committing violent offences also grew >30% in the same period. This was 
a key driver for change in London.  

5.1.3 In response MOPAC, Police, Probation, Ministry of Justice and the Home Office reviewed 
existing IOM practices and launched an ‘Updated Operating Framework - London Integrated 

Outcome : Community safety partners respond to the crime and anti-social behaviour 
which most concerns Londoners.  Better Criminal Justice response and outcomes for 
victims. 

Measure: Increase in victims being able to access Restorative Justice. 

Baseline: Fewer than 10% of victims currently being offered RJ. 

Target: 25% of victims given the opportunity to access Restorative Justice. 

 

52



23 
 

Offender Management, Managing Persistent, Violent Offenders’ published in January 2021. 
The IOM model allows for focused management of persistent/violent offenders which means 
that individuals that do not engage are arrested or ‘breached’ (returned to court) more swiftly 
and the frequency and seriousness of offending is reduced. 

5.1.4 London Integrated Offender Management (IOM): Managing Persistent, Violent Offenders – 
Framework (2021) summarises arrangements for IOM delivery and supports consistent 
approaches across London to measure multi-agency interventions and provide the basis for 
future innovation and developments in shared offender management.  

5.1.5 The 2021 Framework has integration embodied in three principles – police and probation 
working together; ensuring local priorities are met through local leadership and partnerships; 
and a holistic offender supervision approach.  

5.1.6 In addition to Police and probation working together, there is an emphasis on working in 
partnership at both a strategic and operational level with wider partners including housing, 
drug and alcohol services and employment agencies in addition to supporting transitions 
from prison to the community and youth justice transitions to Probation/IOM Services  

5.1.7 Barnet’s Strategic Reducing Offending Delivery Group provides the basis through which 
these principals are met. The Strategic Partnership meet quarterly to share local data and 
monitor the effectiveness of the partnership in reducing offending and reports to the Safer 
Community Partnership quarterly.  

5.1.8 The Police are leading a Robbery/Burglary Strategy Event on 26 April 2023 for the Reducing 
Offending Partnership. 

5.1.9 The Terms of Reference are currently in draft to ensure that the Strategic Reducing 
Offending Delivery Group aims are appropriately aligned to existing local multi-agency and 
statutory partnership workstreams for Safeguarding Children, Early Help, Youth Justice, 
Tackling Violence & Exploitation and Combatting Drugs, with which there is some overlap.  

 

❖ Youth to Adult Transitions 

5.1.10 Analysis of offending data shows that both locally & nationally in both adult and child 
cohorts there is a very small but complex group, who despite the best efforts of multiple 
interventions over many years, do not achieve behaviour change and continue to offend; 
these individuals are often at a high risk of harm. 

5.1.11 The top 5- 10% of Red RAG rated adult offenders invariably have been known to multiple 
services during their minority, both before, during and after youth justice interventions. 
Unfortunately, the youth justice system has very little influence on the causes of childhood 
offending, as such both upstream and downstream collaborative approaches to 
preventing and reducing reoffending are recommended (Capricorn, Public Health 
England, 2019).  

53



24 
 

 

5.1.12 In Barnet, interventions upstream are led by the Child and Family Early Help Partnership 
and downstream by the Youth Justice Partnership which supports Barnet’s lower than 
London averages of children in need, children at risk, children in care and lower than 
average youth re-offending rates.  

5.1.13 However, there is a small minority of young people who go on to commit repeat offences 
into adulthood, these are often victims of criminal exploitation who are unable to exit the 
organised criminal networks who coerce and control them. 14 of 16 youth to adult 
transitions have resulted in arrest, breach or custody for robbery, violence and supply of 
Class A drugs which impacts negatively on IOM’s reoffending rate. 

5.1.14 IOM case practitioners report that typically these young people present with a reluctance to 
engage in supportive interventions and will undertake AMBIT (Adaptive Mentalization 
Based Integrative Treatment) training to improve engagement when available. 

5.1.15 Transitional Safeguarding arrangements that provide an IOM approach to evaluating, 
monitoring and managing risk for this cohort need to be better developed and provided 
earlier in preparation for closure and/or resettlement. This has been highlighted in the pan-
London peer review of Strategic MACE (multi-agency child exploitation) which is noted later 
in the Strategic Planning section of the report.  

5.1.16 As there is no existing multi-agency provision that currently supports transitions to 
adulthood for young people at risk of exploitation and violence; the funding provided by 

54



25 
 

MOPAC for delivery against the Serious Violence Duty has been targeted at engaging older 
adolescents and young adults through detached assertive outreach.  

 
❖ Performance Data IOM Cohort Q4 2022/23  

5.1.17 Data provided by the Home Office ID-IOM, London MOPAC IOM Data store & ECINS 
Performance system report; 

5.1.18 Barnet IOM Cohort: 105 adults in the cohort (An increase of 4 from Q3) who are the 
highest risk, most prolific, persistent and violent offenders. 

▪ Statutory Offenders: (Managed on license by Probation) = 88.  

▪ Non-Statutory: (Managed by IOM Police) =17. 

▪ Risk/Vulnerability RAG Scores: Red = 39, Amber = 23, Green 9,  

▪ Blue = 34 (In custody/remand) 

▪ Ethnicity: Asian – 16 Black – 33 Other – 3 White – 53. 

▪ Gender: Male - 101, Female - 4. (a reduction of 9 females from Q3) 

▪ Age: 17 ½ – 3 (Increase), 18-24yrs.-27, 25-34yrs.- 30, 35-44yrs.- 32, 45yrs.plus – 13. 

 

5.1.19 Q4 ‘Clinical Outcomes’ report on completed programs/positive outcomes as a % of all 
referrals made: 

▪ Accommodation 75%-90% Housed. 

▪ DWP- Universal Credit Application/Training/Employment – 75%-85% 

▪ Drugs/Alcohol – 45%-60% (Referral levels to CGL by Probation appear low in 
relation to IOM offenders with known substance misuse) 

▪ Probation -Thinking & Behaviour – 80% 

▪ Probation Education/courses – 50%. 

▪ Number 1 Ex-Offender Mentoring Academy – 95%. 

 

5.1.20 Offences Charged in highest numerical order (data from Q2 2022/23) 

� Residential Burglary 

� Robbery/Violence (Data shows primarily committed by YP on YP) 

� Theft 

� Drug offences. 

55



26 
 

 
Offences per year per case  

� Before being on IOM cohort – 6.1 < 0.1% 

� During IOM cohort – 4.2 < 0.7% 

� After leaving IOM cohort – 2.0 > 1.0%. 

 
Estimated Cost of Crime per year per case  

� Before being on IOM cohort - £20,659 

� During IOM cohort – £15,131 

� After leaving IOM cohort - £7065. 

� Total cost saving to public purse £13,594. 

5.1.21 Barnet’s IOM program continues to contribute towards a significant reduction in crime 
which results in reduced costs totalling many millions to the partnership and criminal 
justice system, crime reduction has a positive impact on the community whilst also 
increasing trust and confidence of rehabilitation partners working to reduce crime within 
the community.  

 
❖ Reoffending Rates 

5.1.22 Q4 changes as comparison to Q2 2022/23 

                                                     London             Barnet                  Brent              Harrow 

Charged offences               2339 >9.6%         135 >26.2%         154 >35%          68 >9.7% 

Offenders charged             654 >11.2%          30 >11.2%             45 >60%           17 <5.6% 

Offenders in cohort           2,192 >4.9%         105 >15%              118 > 20%        73 < 1.4% 

Offenders charged             593 >9.2%            27 >17%                 35 > 29%          73 <1.4% 

during cohort 

Reoffending rate                27.2%                     24%                        29.7%               22% 

 

5.1.23 IOM Impact on Reducing Reoffending, Ministry of Justice Proven  Reoffending metric; 

▪ Adults released from custodial sentences of less than 12 months have a proven 
reoffending rate of 58.4%.  

56



27 
 

▪ Adults released from sentences of less than or equal to 6 months had a proven 
reoffending rate of 60.1%. 

▪ Through a combination of collaborative/joined up Multiagency ‘One Plan’ focused 
enforcement & supportive interventions Barnet IOM have been able to reduce the 
reoffending rate of this prolific/persistent & violent group of adult offenders to 24%. 

 
5.1.24 MOPAC LCPF Commissioned Service – No1 Fitness First Educational Academy 

(Recently rebranded as Ex-Offender Mentoring/Life Experienced Educational Academy) 

Clinical Outcomes; 

▪ Fitness Course - 8 out of 13 clients successfully completed 61.5% 

▪ Mentoring/Key Worker - 13 out of 13 clients successfully completed 100% 

▪ Employability Skills - 11 out of 13 clients successfully completed 84.6% 

▪ Digital Skills - 8 out of 13 clients successfully completed 61.5%. 

Clinical Output/Outcomes  

5.1.25 Engagement by MOPAC LCPF funded No1 Ex Offender Mentoring Educational 
Academy staff is primarily face to face, whether that be in their offices or at the Probation 
Offices at Denmark House. Conversations are taking place to explore whether or not 
other LBB properties (e.g. Canada Villa Youth Centre) could be used to reach out to 
clients that do not live close to current delivery locations or if there are geographical 
safeguarding risks. 

5.1.26 The level of engagement is risk-matched, those in the IOM Red/Amber group have daily 
contact and those in the Green cohort have contact 2-3 times per week. The service 
provides cover 7 days a week and outside of office hours. 

5.1.27 Of the 30 Prolific, Persistent & Violent Offenders engaged with and working in 
partnership across the IOM Rehabilitation Team only 2 have reoffended during 
engagement with staff.  

5.1.28 Since commencing service in August 2022 the organization have been referred in 
excess of 30 individuals but due to breaches/recalls etc they are taking on new referrals 
to ensure the service is fully utilized. Unfortunately, 4 youth to adult transitions refused to 
engage and have subsequently been arrested, breached and sentenced to custody. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

57



28 
 

❖ De-personalized brief case studies of summary of work/engagement 
completed to date:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case Study A

“A was referred to No1 Ex-Offender Mentoring Educational Academy on in September 2022, he 
initially refused to work with the service stating that he didn’t have to engage because nothing 
would happen to him regardless and that he thought that the service was staffed by police officers. 
His charity key worker was able to find out which professionals were working with A and I asked if 
he could arrange an introduction. A was reluctant and suspicious about working with the case 
worker from No1 Ex Offender Mentoring Educational Academy.

In January 2023, his personal advisor from the Onwards & Upwards Team was able to explain to A  
my role and the benefits of a Mentor. I was able to meet A and build his trust in me and the service. 
We now have a strong working relationship, building trust, and are helping him with his rent arrears, 
council tax arrears and electricity arrears. He invited me to go to his family home and meet his 
mother. On the day I visited and sat down with him and his mother, he explained to me how grateful 
they both were to have this kind of support. We now have daily calls about setting up payment 
plans for his arrears and are helping build a budget plan to support him with this. We are looking to 
extend the support with A, as we can see he needs further support around block building his self-
confidence and our service, in conjunction with DWP/Job Coaches, are helping him get into 
education and construction. 

A was also locked out of his Barnet Homes property due to an active Gas Warrant, due to his 
learning needs and mental health he was confused, agitated and did not understanding this 
process. We are now liaising with Barnet Homes and other professionals to get his new keys and 
get him back into his property. We are also working with Barnet Homes to clarify if he is using the 
property. We continue to support A who has not reoffended since our support started”. Mentor, No1 
Fitness Ex Offender Mentoring Educational Academy

Case Study 2: 

“Our key worker from No1 Ex Offender Mentoring Educational Academy met B on the same day of 
his prison release. The meeting took place at Barnet probation offices. I was able to assist in getting 
him housed by working with his probation officer and complementing her efforts to contact Barnet 
Home, who were difficult to get through to and explain the importance of housing B. 

Barnet Homes offered a property to B close to 4pm and sent him a text with the instructions, but as 
his phone was only a simple Nokia phone, he was unable to read the full information. I stayed 
connected with him up to 10pm and made sure he was able to find a safe homeless hostel to sleep 
in. My organisation even offered to pay for him to stay in a Travelodge for the night. 

The next day I was able to guide B to the property and he settled in a few days later. The feedback 
we got from B and the Senior Probation Officer, who was fantastic and very much appreciated, 
recognising our work” Mentor, No1 Fitness Ex Offender Mentoring Educational Academy

58



29 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.2  Reducing Offending Youth Offending  

5.2.1 Barnet Youth Justice Services (YJS) work with young people aged 10 to 17 who have 
offended. The Child & Family Early Help Service delivers prevention and diversion 
activities, including Out of Court Disposals on behalf of the YJS. The approach ensures 
children are linked to wider Early Help Offer that can address some of the causal factors of 
childhood offending.  

5.2.2 The Q4 2022/23 data set provided to Youth Justice Services across London has been 
found to contain anomalies, as such is being reviewed by the Youth Justice Board and 
Metropolitan Police in order to be re-circulated, as such the Q4 2022/23 data will not be 
presented to the Safer Communities Partnership Board on this ocassion. There are no 
anticipated significant shifts in Barnet’s performance data from the previous quarter against 
the four Youth Justice KPI’s, which are First Time Entrants, Reoffending Binary Rate and 
Frequency Rate and Custody rates. These will be reported alongside Q1 2023/24 data at 
the next SCPB.  

5.2.3 On 8 March 2023, the Youth Justice Board (YJB) for England and Wales and the Ministry of 
Justice (MoJ) published new Key Performance Indicators for Youth Justice Services (YJS) 
which were implemented on 1 April 2023.  

5.2.4 YJS’s will report on 10 new key performance indicators (KPIs) designed by the Ministry of 
Justice (MoJ) in consultation with the YJB, front line services, inspectorates and other 
government departments as part of improved monitoring by the YJB. The 10 new KPI’s are 
in addition to 4 current KPIs (first time entrants, reoffending binary rate and frequency rate, 
and the number of children in custody) as they provide a helpful overview of how the youth 

Case Study 3

“C mentioned in our mentoring sessions that he would like to become a mechanic and that he wasn’t 
able to find a place that could offer this. I was able to locate a company in Enfield that offers 
apprenticeships. We have made a referral to the company, and they will be arranging to meet him 
next Friday to go over the enrolment process and we will be attending with him to support him with 
any documents. We have also discussed the options about reducing and stopping cannabis, he said 
he was willing for me to refer him to Change Grow Live for a referral meeting also supported by his 
Probation Officer.”

“The majority of our IOM nominals have not re-offended and have been attending weekly meetings 
with us. No1 Fitness Ex Offender Mentoring Educational Academy has adapted and varied its 
working practices to help meet the requirements of some of the IOM nominals. This includes 
attending the London Probation Office in Barnet twice a week to ensure we can meet their IOM 
clients as some of them can't attend their offices in New Southgate. They have also extended our 
service hours from Mon-Fri 9am to 6pm to now include Sat & Sun”. Mentor No1 Fitness Ex-Offender 
Mentoring Educational Academy

59



30 
 

justice system is delivering against its principle statutory aim of preventing offending by 
children. 

5.2.5 The data will be used by the YJB to monitor performance of youth justice services (YJS) 
and by the MoJ to identify barriers to reducing reoffending. 

5.2.6 In recognition of the important role of prevention and diversion activity, which in Barnet is 
delivered by the Child & Family Early Help Service on behalf of the YJS. The MoJ and the 
YJB have determined that the data collected will include all children with whom the YJS is 
working, not just those with a conviction.The YJB and MoJ aim to publish initial findings 
from national data on the key performance indicators in spring 2025. 

5.2.7 The 10 KPIs are set out below: 

KPI Description 

KPI 1 - Accommodation The percentage of children in the community and being 
released from custody with suitable accommodation 
arrangements 

KPI 2 - Education, training 
and employment (ETE) 

The percentage of children in the community and being 
released from custody attending a suitable ETE 
arrangement 

KPI 3 - Special educational 
needs or disability 
(SEND)/Additional 
Learning Needs (ALN) 

The percentage of children who have an identified SEND 
need (or ALN in Wales), are in suitable ETE and have a 
formal learning plan in place for the current academic year 

KPI 4 - Mental healthcare 
and emotional wellbeing 

The percentage of children in the community and being 
released from custody with a screened, or, identified need 
for an intervention to improve mental health or emotional 
wellbeing; and of that the percentage of planned/offered 
interventions; of that percentage of children attending 
interventions 

KPI 5 - Substance misuse The percentage of children with a screened or identified 
need for specialist treatment intervention to address 
substance misuse; and of that the percentage of children 
with planned or offered intervention/treatment; and of that 

60



31 
 

KPI Description 

the percentage number of children attending 
intervention/treatment 

KPI 6 – Out-of-court 
disposals 

The percentage of out-of-court disposal interventions that 
are completed/not completed 

KPI 7 - Management Board 
attendance 

Monitoring senior partner representation at management 
boards, and monitoring if partners contribute data from 
their individual services that identify areas of racial and 
ethnic disproportionality. 

KPI 8 - Wider services The percentage children who are currently on either an 
Early Help (EH) plan; on a child protection (CP) plan or 
classified as Child in need (CiN) or have looked-after 
status. For Wales only, children who are classified as 
Children in Need of Care and Support 

KPI 9 - Serious violence The rates of children convicted for a serious violent 
offence on the YJS caseload. 

KPI 10 - Victims The percentage of victims who consent to be contacted by 
the YJS, and of those, the percentage of victims who are 
engaged with about restorative justice opportunities, 
asked their view prior to out-of-court disposal decision-
making and planning for statutory court orders, provided 
information about the progress of the child’s case (when 
requested) and provided with information on appropriate 
services that support victims (when requested). 

  

6. Strategic Planning   

 
6.1 Barnet’s Child & Family Early Help Strategy 2023 – 2027 has been published following 

approval of the Children, Education & Safeguarding Committee held in March 2023.   

6.2 Two strategic needs assessments (SNA) are underway to meet the duties arising from the 
10-Year Drugs Plan to Reduce Crime and Save Lives: From Harm to Hope (2022) and the 

61



32 
 

Serious Violence Duty (SVD 2023). The two SNA’s are interlinked as they both aim to counter 
the harm caused to young people through criminal exploitation and county lines drug dealing. 
The Serious Violence Duty SNA will inform the development of a multi-agency Strategy which 
will be published in 2024. 

6.3 Strategic Multi-Agency Child Exploitation (MACE) arrangements are also currently under 
revision to align with recommendations and workflows arising from the findings of a peer 
evaluation of Strategic MACE arrangements in London. The work was commissioned by the 
London Adolescent Safeguarding Board (LASOB) and conducted between January and June 
2022. 

6.4 The findings of the peer review identified a number of variations and inconsistencies across 
Strategic MACE practices in London resulting in varied membership and seniority, a lack of 
shared understanding of purpose, under-representation of disruption and offender work, 
varied policing contributions across BCU’s and between different types of exploitation, varied 
health and education contributions and inconsistent cross-border working.  

6.5 The review also found that arrangements to safeguard young adults from exploitation are 
largely underdeveloped, not yet fully engaging agencies with adult responsibilities such as 
adult social care and the probation service.  

6.6 The LASOB and the London Children’s Safeguarding Partnership Executive have accepted 
the report findings and endorsed the 22 recommendations. A pan-London MACE-Chairs 
working group has been established to move the recommendations to action. 

6.7 The strategy for vulnerable/at risk adolescents (Violence, Vulnerability & Exploitation) is 
currently being co-produced with key stakeholders, community providers, children, young 
people and parents. The strategy will be informed by the SVD SNA, the Combatting Drugs 
SNA and work taking place pan-London to develop multi-agency safeguarding arrangements 
for children at risk of extra-familial harm.   

6.8  There is a need to ensure that local strategies for reducing offending, and tackling violence 
are aligned, in particular where there is cross over into child safeguarding practices so that 
they support the delivery aims of both the Children and Young People's Plan 2023 and the 
Corporate Plan 2023 - 2026. 

 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
7.1 To update the Safer Community Partnership Board regarding the progress made in relation to 

the delivery of the various work strands in Family Services in relation to Domestic Abuse, 
VAWG, Exploitation, Serious Youth Violence and Reducing Reoffending. 
 

7.2 For the SCPB to recognise progress made against the ambitions of the council in delivering 
reductions in exploitation, offending and comprehensive services to tackle all forms of violence 
and to note the commitment of the local authority to achieving a cohesive local model of delivery 
that improves outcomes for all residents. 

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 

 
8.1 Not relevant in relation to this report. 

62



33 
 

 
9. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 

 
9.1 To develop partnership-led and community informed local strategies to prevent and respond 

to violence, exploitation and offending which will inform monitoring fora and governance 
arrangements for this comprehensive group of services. 
 

9.2 Family Services will coordinate stakeholder meetings to explore key priorities and undertake 
public consultation and member engagement activities to agree local strategic priorities and 
plans for coordinated delivery.  

 
10. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

10.1 The activities above align with the ‘Family Friendly’ priority in the current corporate plan 
(the Barnet Plan 2021-2025) however, we expect the new administration to develop a new 
corporate plan, consistent with the new administration’s priorities.  

 
11. Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
11.1      There are no current financial implications associated with the recommendations of this report. 

 
 

12. Legal and Constitutional References 
 

12.1  Under s.17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, it is a duty of the Council (and other partner 

agencies, including Police, Fire & Rescue, Greater London Authority, Transport for London) 

when exercising its functions to have due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 

functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder 

(including anti-social behaviour), misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances and re-

offending.  

12.2  The BSCP is a Community Safety Partnership set up in accordance with the requirement of the 

section 5 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 as amended by section 108 of the Policing and Crime 

Act 2009. 

12.3   The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 places a duty on local authorities in England to assess the 

need for accommodation-based support to victims of domestic abuse, prepare and publish a 

strategy for the provision of such support and monitor and evaluate its effectiveness.  Prior to 

publishing a strategy, the local authority must consult the domestic abuse local partnership 

board and such other persons as the local authority considers appropriate.  

 

12.4 Section 10 of the Offender Rehabilitation Act 2014 amended the Offender Management Act 

2007, placing a duty on the Secretary of State for Justice to ensure that arrangements for 

63



34 
 

supervision or rehabilitation identify specific need and so make appropriate provision for women 

and vulnerable groups. 

 

Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a duty on local authorities, after 

consultation with the relevant persons and bodies, to formulate and implement for each year a 

plan (a "youth justice plan") setting out: 

(a) how youth justice services in their area are to be provided and funded; and 

(b) how the youth offending team or teams established by them are to be composed and funded, 

how they are to operate, and what functions they are to carry out. 

 

12.6 The Chair of the Youth Justice Board has responsibility for submitting the Youth Justice Plan 

to the Youth Justice Board established under section 41 and shall publish it as required by the 

Secretary of State." 

13. Insight 
n/a  
 

 
14. Social Value 

 
14.1 The cost of offending and reoffending is set out in the 2018 Home Office report on the Economic 

and Social Cost of Crime (2nd edition). The report followed a cohort of offenders identified in 2016 

who subsequently went on to reoffend during the 12-month follow up. The total estimated economic 

and social cost of reoffending was £18.1 billion. In addition, there is a further personal, familial and 

community cost which impacts on the lives of individuals, children and families and the communities 

that they live in.  

 

14.2 48% of adults that spend time in prison go on to reoffend within 12-months of release. Prison does 

not treat offending and does not prevent reoffending (Ministry of Justice, 2019 ‘Proven reoffending 

statistics’: April – June 2017) 

 

14.3 Reducing reoffending seeks to minimise the harm caused and create opportunities for social 

integration, family cohesion and community engagement. For women, particularly those who are 

primary carers for children, the value in supporting those women to escape cycles of abuse, 

victimisation and offending may also mean providing a child(ren) with improved opportunities to 

grow up in their own family and to enjoy healthy and reliable contact with a primary carer.  

 
14.4 Violence preventative interventions, improve educational and health outcomes. Violence is a major 

cause of ill health negatively affects wellbeing; it is strongly related to inequalities. The poorest fifth 

of people in England have hospital admission rates for violence five times higher than those of the 

64



35 
 

most affluent fifth. It affects individuals and communities and is a drain on health services, the 

criminal justice system and the wider economy. (Serious Violence Duty: Draft Guidance for 

responsible authorities, 2023) 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 Risk management varies according to the different initiatives. The partnership or appropriate 

agencies are made aware of risks and actions to mitigate the risk are agreed and put in place. 

There is always risk that the partnership may not achieve the targets set due to factors outside its 

direct control – however there is strong partnership working in place enabling agencies to identify 

and highlight risk and be open to addressing the risk collectively. 

 
16. Equalities and Diversity  

 
16.1 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in making their 

decisions. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the public-sector equality duty to 
which the authority must have due regard. 

16.2 Elected Members are to satisfy themselves that equality considerations are integrated into 
day-to-day business and that all proposals emerging from the business planning process 
have taken into consideration the impact, if any, on any protected group and what mitigating 
factors can be put in place. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties to 
secure a particular outcome.  

16.3 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due 
regard, in particular, to the need to: 

• remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

• take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that 
are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

• Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life 
or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low. 

16.4 Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in 
particular, to the need to: 

• Tackle prejudice, and 

• Promote understanding. 

16.5 Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more favourably 
than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would otherwise be prohibited 
by or under this Act. The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender reassignment 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race, 

65



36 
 

• Religion or belief 

• Sex 

• Sexual orientation 

• Marriage and Civil partnership 

 

16.6 The commitment to the Public Sector Equality Duty is set out in the council’s Equalities, Diversity 
and Inclusion Policy 2021-2025 which aims to actively tackle inequalities, foster good relationships 
across our communities and recognise the contributions that people from different backgrounds 
make to life in our borough. Violence and offending affect all communities and there well documented 
racial disproportionality in the criminal justice system for children and adults that must be addressed. 
The Domestic Abuse & Violence Against Women & Girls Strategy and action plans to reduce 
violence, recognises the intersectionality of protected characteristics, disadvantage and 
discrimination.  It is our aim for the borough to be a fair, inclusive and a safe place for all our 
communities. Where discrimination is tackled, hate crime is reported and dealt with promptly, and 
everyone feels safe to live their life. 

. 
17. Corporate Parenting 

 
17.1 Many children who are cared for by the local authority have been exposed to domestic abuse prior 

to entry into care and young women in care and leaving care may have adverse childhood 
experiences that may make them more vulnerable to domestic abuse, coercion and control in 
relationships. The DA and VAWG Strategy 2022 – 2025 aims to ensure that domestic abuse 
services are accessible to all that need them, including children. The strategy will overlap with 
Corporate Parenting Services and arrangements for transitional safeguarding.  
 

17.2 Children and young people in care and care experienced young people have a higher prevalence 
of adverse childhood experiences that may make them susceptible to grooming and coercion as 
such may be at an increased risk of becoming involved with the criminal justice system. The 
strategic aims of working with children, young people and adults at risk of violence, exploitation 
and offending will ensure cohesive overlap with Corporate Parenting Services, transitional 
safeguarding and transitions and resettlement planning for young people involved with Youth 
Offending Services and transitioning to National Probation Services.  

 
18. Consultation and Engagement 

 
18.1 As a matter of public law, the duty to consult with regards to proposals to vary, reduce or withdraw 

services will arise in four circumstances: 
• where there is a statutory requirement in the relevant legislative framework 
• where the practice has been to consult, or, where a policy document states the council will 

consult, then the council must comply with its own practice or policy 
• exceptionally, where the matter is so important that there is a legitimate expectation of 

consultation 
• Where consultation is required to complete an equalities impact assessment. 

 
18.2  Regardless of whether the council has a duty to consult, if it chooses to consult, such 

consultation must be carried out fairly. In general, a consultation can only be considered as 
proper consultation if: 
• comments are genuinely invited at the formative stage 
• the consultation documents include sufficient reasons for the proposal to allow those being 

consulted to be properly informed and to give an informed response 
• there is adequate time given to the consultees to consider the proposals 

66



37 
 

• there is a mechanism for feeding back the comments and those comments are considered 
by the decision-maker / decision-making body when making a final decision 

• the degree of specificity with which, in fairness, the public authority should conduct its 
consultation exercise may be influenced by the identity of those whom it is consulting 

• where relevant and appropriate, the consultation is clear on the reasons why and extent to 
which alternatives and discarded options have been discarded. The more intrusive the 
decision, the more likely it is to attract a higher level of procedural fairness. 

18.3 The refresh of the 0-19 Early Help Strategy and Vulnerable Adolescents Strategy will be 
informed by public consultations - including with partnership organisations, members and 
service users. This will be further detailed as the strategies are developed.  

19. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
19.1   None. 
 
20. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
20.1 To update the Safer Community Partnership Board regarding the progress made in relation to 

the delivery of the various work strands in Family Services in relation to Domestic Abuse, 
VAWG, Exploitation, Serious Youth Violence and Reducing Reoffending 

 
20.2 For the SCPB to recognise progress made against the ambitions of the council in delivering 

reductions in exploitation, offending and comprehensive services to tackle all forms of 
violence and to note the commitment of the local authority to achieving a cohesive local 
model of delivery that improves outcomes for all residents. 

 

21. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

21.1 Not relevant in relation to this report. 
 

22. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

22.1 To develop partnership-led and community informed local strategies to prevent and respond 
to violence, exploitation and offending which will inform monitoring fora and governance 
arrangements for this comprehensive group of services. 

 
22.2 Family Services will coordinate stakeholder meetings to explore key priorities and undertake 

public consultation and member engagement activities to agree local strategic priorities and 
plans for coordinated delivery.  

 

  

67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Safer Communities Partnership Board  
 

28th April 2023 

Title  Director of Public Health Report on Performance and Delivery 
Progress on drug and alcohol misuse services 

Report of Chair of the Safer Communities Partnership Board 

Wards All 

Status Public  

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          None 

Officer Contact Details  
Luke Kwamya, Head of Public Health Commissioning, 
Healthy Behaviour Commissioning;  
Luke.Kwamya@barnet.gov.uk 

 

Summary 
This report provides an overview and update to the Safer Communities Partnership Board 
on key areas of the Directorate of Public Health Performance and delivery of substance 
misuse services and, these are:  

• Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP). 
• Funding of Substance Misuse Services. 
• Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery Services.  
• Number of People Accessing Treatment and Outcomes. 
• Data on Structured Treatment – Adults and Young People. 
• Outreach and Community Engagement. 
• Recovery Orientated Treatment. 
• Feedback on service user stories. 

 
Officers Recommendations  

1. The Safer Communities Partnership Board to consider and note the progress 
being made to Deliver a world-class Drug and Alcohol treatment and recovery 
system, including setting up of the Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership 
(BCDP). 

2. The Safer Communities Partnership Board to agree oversight of BCDP delivery 
plan. 

69

AGENDA ITEM 9

mailto:Luke.Kwamya@barnet.gov.uk


Page 2 of 13 

1. Why this report is needed 

1.1 This report provides the Safer Communities Partnership Board with progress on Public 
Health Performance and Delivery on drug and alcohol misuse services, which include 
update on the already set up Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP). 

2. Reasons for recommendations 

2.1 To update the Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB) regarding the progress 
made in relation to the delivery of the various work strands of the Substance Misuse 
services which include the following; Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP), 
Funding of Substance Misuse Services, Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery 
Services, Number of People Accessing Treatment and Outcomes, Data on Structured 
Treatment – Adults and Young People, Outreach and Community Engagement and, 
Recovery Orientated Treatment 

Barnet Combating Drugs partnership and Substance Misuse Services Update 

2.2 Overview: The national drug strategy, ‘From Harm to Hope’, was published in December 
2021. It sets out the government’s 10-year plan to tackle harm caused by illegal drug use 
and related crime. The strategy was the government's response to two independent 
reports produced by Dame Carol Black in 2020 and 2021. 

 2.3 From Harm to Hope benefited from cross-government sponsorship, being signed off by the 
Home Secretary, the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, and the Combating 
Drugs Minister. Delivery of the strategy was supported by considerable additional funding 
(almost £900m over three years) and the establishment of the cross-government Joint 
Combating Drugs Unit (JCDU).   

  
In keeping with prior drug strategies, From Harm to Hope sets out three strategic priorities:  

  
1. Break drug supply chains  

2. Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system  

3. Achieve a generational shift in the demand for drugs  

2.3 Currently there is no national alcohol strategy and no plans have been announced to 
publish such a strategy. The most recent alcohol strategy was published for the period of 
2012 to 2015. It is expected that local areas consider alcohol prevention and treatment 
as an integrated part of local substance misuse strategies. 

2.4 To ensure delivery of the national strategy, in addition to the JCDU, the government set 
out a framework of national and local accountability. This includes the setting up of 
Combating Drug Partnerships at each locality (to be locally determined), with Senior 
Responsible Officers (SROs), and a set of national performance measures. In London, 
all Combating Drugs Partnerships are at the borough level and, across the country, over 
70% of SROs are Directors of Public Health. Some CDPs have Directors of Children 
Services, elected members or Police as designated SROs. In Barnet, Director of Public 
Health is an SRO for the Partnership, and it is chaired by elected member, Chair of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 

70



Page 3 of 13 

 

2.5 Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP) 
 
2.5.1 The Barnet CDPB launched in November 2022 and has had two meetings to date. The 

CDPB aims to address the following key outcomes:  
• Reduce drug related crime   

• Reduce harm   

• Reduce supply   

• Increase treatment engagement   

• Increase long-term recovery 

• Reduce the number of people developing problematic substance misuse 

2.5.2 Whilst the Barnet CDPB will report to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB), there 
will be strong oversight from the Barnet Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB), 
with an expectation that relevant partners of the BSCPB will take leadership of key 
elements of the CDP Delivery Plan especially, on actions relating to breaking drug 
supply chains and addressing offending behaviour whilst working closely with the wider 
partnership. Other strategic boards will be asked to take ownership of areas that relate 
to their core business. 

2.5.3 The Barnet CDPB is currently finalising a local “From Harm to Hope” needs assessment 
which assesses Barnet’s delivery of the three strategic priorities. Following the needs 
assessment, a delivery plan will be agreed by the CDPB and HWBB. SCPB will receive 
agreed delivery plan, for noting and support for delivery. 

2.5.4 Creation of the CDPBs across the Country, brings together key partners to work 
together in combating drug relating crime whilst providing world class treatment and 
support to residents with addiction challenges.  

2.5.5 In Barnet, Public Health continue to work closely with other key departments of the 
Council to achieve and deliver on the main objectives of the CDP. Children and 
Families Department for example will play a key role on the Barnet CDPB given that 
they have a duty on tackling/addressing serious violence in the Borough, including their 
remit and role on reducing reoffending, tackling domestic abuse and violence against 
women & girls. These and other related elements of the national drug strategy via 
implementation and/or delivery of the local Barnet CDP Action Plan, will go a long way 
in ensuring that there is in place a coordinated and ambitious delivery plan focused on 
prevention, reducing harm, violence, exploitation, offending and treatment. 

2.5.6 This report asks the SCPB to note that it will be a good idea to keep the CDPB elements 
discussed as a standing update at the statutory working group of the SCPB. 

2.6 Funding 

   2.6.1 In recent years, publicly funded alcohol and drug treatment has largely been 
commissioned using funding from the annual public health grant, overseen by Directors 
of Public Health within local authorities. In 2022/23, the budget for substance misuse 

71



Page 4 of 13 

treatment services was £2,349,399.34 for adults and £199,540.46 for young people. Both 
services are delivered by Change Grow Live.  

   2.6.2 Following the publication of the 2021 drug strategy, a new Supplemental Substance 
Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant (SSMTRG) was announced. This has provided 
Barnet with £381,264 in 2022/23 and £390,000 for 2023/24. There is a further £41,000 
available for inpatient detoxification. This is managed via a London consortium. A 
requirement for receipt of these grants is that public health grant investment in substance 
misuse is not reduced.    

 
 2.6.3  Additional drug strategy-related grants to support rough sleepers (RSDATG) have also 

been made available to selected local authorities. This has provided Barnet with £398,121 
of funding to support people rough sleeping in 2022/23 and 2023/24. 

 
2.6.4 The SSMTRG in 2023/24 provides 10 additional roles to support the delivery of the current 

adult and young people’s services. These include: 
1 x Lead substance misuse commissioner (Barnet Council) 
1 x Early engagement worker 
1 x Young persons worker 
2 x Recovery worker apprentices 
0.5 x Non-medical prescriber 
1 x Aftercare practitioner  
1 x Criminal justice practitioner  
0.6 x Criminal justice admin 
1 x Quality lead 

 
2.6.5 The RSDATG funding has enabled the recruitment and development of a specialist 

homelessness and substance misuse outreach team. This includes: 
1 x Public Health officer (Barnet Council) 
1 x Romanian speaking worker 
0.5 x Psychologist 
1 x Floating Support worker 
1 x Outreach worker 
1 x Complex needs outreach nurse 
1 x Outreach team leader  

 
2.7 Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Services  

2.7.1 Barnet Public Health commissions a range of interventions for people whose life is 
impacted by substance misuse. This includes friends and families of people using 
substances as well as the person misusing the substances.  

2.7.2 These services include: 

- Barnet Drinkcoach – commissioned on an annual basis 
o Online and app-based alcohol questionnaire  
o Online and app-based e-resources 
o Online coaching sessions for people who are not alcohol dependant but in need of 

some additional support 
- Change Grow Live Young People’s Service – currently in year 4 of a 5-year contract  

o Support and in-reach for schools 
o 1:1 psychosocial intervention 

72

https://www.changegrowlive.org/barnet


Page 5 of 13 

o Support and education for parents 
o Transitional work for young people reaching adult age 

- Change Grow Live Adult’s Service - currently in year 4 of a 5-year contract  
o Harm reduction advice 
o Needle exchange 
o Overdose prevention and Naloxone distribution for service users and professionals 
o 1:1 psychosocial intervention 
o Access to substitute medication 
o Referrals to residential and community detoxes and residential rehab 
o Counselling 
o Group work 
o Employment, Education and Training support 
o A range of health and wellbeing services including support to stop smoking, blood 

borne virus assessment/vaccination/treatment, health checks 
o Support for friends, families and carers 
o Education and information for professionals including GP’s and other health 

professionals 
o Support for parents who use drugs or alcohol, including co-location with children’s 

centers and family services 
o Prison release support 
o Support throughout the criminal justice system including police custody, courts, and 

prison 
- Change Grow Live Rough Sleeping Drug and Alcohol Project - grant funded on an annual 

basis 
o Romanian speaking outreach 
o Outreach and community engagement 
o Floating support for people at risk of homelessness due to their substance use 

 

2.8 Number of People Accessing Treatment and Outcomes  

2.8.1 Identification And Brief Advice (IBA) 

2.8.1.1 Currently Barnet’s brief intervention is delivered via the DrinkCoach service. The service 
encourages residents to complete an Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test (AUDIT) 
alcohol test and gives advice and information based on the person’s score. For those 
eligible, it also offers access to one-to-one virtual “coaching” sessions from a trained 
counsellor.   

 
2.8.1.2 The AUDIT () is a simple and effective method of screening for unhealthy alcohol use, 

defined as risky or hazardous use.   
 
2.8.1.3 For the 12-month period of January 2022 to December 2022 there were:  

▪ 5,348 visits to the Drinkcoach test  
▪ 1,647 AUDIT’s complete  

Low Risk Audit’s Completed  Increasing Risk AUDIT’s Completed  
  
480  

  
29%  
  

  
623  

  
38%  

73

https://drinkcoach.org.uk/


Page 6 of 13 

Higher Risk Audit’s Completed  Possible Dependence Audit’s  
  
193  

  
12%  
  

  
388  

  
24%  

 

2.8.2 Structured Treatment – Adults and Young People 

2.8.2.1 The following data is reported via the National Drug Treatment Monitoring System 
(NDTMS). NDTMS collects person level, patient identifiable data from drug and alcohol 
treatment providers at a national level. 

2.8.2.2 The number of adults over 18 in structured treatment recorded by NDTMS shows an 
increasing trend and a more rapid increase from 2018-19 onwards. Numbers in treatment 
in 2021-22 were slightly higher than the previous peak in 2013-14.  

 

  
 
2.8.2.3 Most adults in treatment are being treated for opiate use. People who are only using 

alcohol make up the second-largest group, which has been increasing since 2018-19.  
 

  

74



Page 7 of 13 

 
 
2.8.2.4 The main reason for adult treatment exits has been that people successfully completed 

their treatment, except in 2020-21 when more people continued their treatment to ensure 
they had support during COVID-19 lockdowns. The peak for ‘Transferred not in custody’ 
in 2015-16 reflects a transfer between service providers during a previous 
recommissioning of the service.  

  
 

2.8.2.5 The NDTMS data below shows that the number of young people under 18 in structured 
treatment has declined since 2012-13, this is a trend reflected in national data.  

 

 
 
 

75



Page 8 of 13 

 
 
2.8.2.6 The main substances reported by young people are cannabis and alcohol, this is also 

reflected nationally and has been a long-term trend. The graph below shows the 
substances reported to NDTMS for young people under 18 in structured treatment; up to 
3 substances can be reported for each young person.  

 
 

2.8.2.7 The majority of young people under 18 complete their treatment, with smaller numbers 
dropping out, declining treatment or being referred on.  

  

  

76



Page 9 of 13 

 

2.8.2.8 More detailed analysis will be available in the Barnet substance misuse needs   
assessment which is currently in development for the Combating Drugs Partnership. 

2.9 Outreach and Community Engagement  

2.9.1 Barnet received grant funding in 2021 to deliver a project to support people who are rough 
sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping who have substance misuse issues. The grant was 
given to fund specialist support for individuals to access and engage with drug and alcohol 
treatment and move towards longer-term accommodation, supporting the work of wider 
homelessness and rough sleeping funding. The grant is managed and coordinated by 
Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID). 

 
2.9.2 Rough Sleeping Grant Funding is annually agreed as from 2021 to 2025 at least. 

Indications of funding beyond 2025 are not known at this time. 
 
2.9.3 The caseworkers in the teamwork in partnership with Barnet Homes and Homeless Action 

in Barnet (HAB) to deliver multifactorial interventions to people who would ordinarily find it 
more challenging to access treatment services due to their homelessness and other 
related problems.    

 
2.9.4 Since the launch of the project in 2021, the number of people engaged through outreach 

has continued to grow steadily.  

  
 

2.9.5 Additionally, the team co-ordinate regular community events offering health checks, stop 
smoking interventions, COVID and flu vaccinations, Hepatitis C screening, naloxone 
distribution as well as haircuts, hot food and other services.  

2.10 Recovery Orientated Treatment 

2.10.1 Successful substance misuse treatment is so much more than addressing a person’s drug 
and alcohol problems. Addiction can be incredibly isolating, and to address this the Change 
Grow Live service has visible recovery at its heart. Recovery which provides people with 
the skills, tools, and mechanisms to be part of a community.  

2.10.2 Some examples of this are: 

- Safe Saturday Project – a recovery focussed spaced led by peers 

77



Page 10 of 13 

- Allotment Project – a community allotment where service users grow vegetables and learn 
about food, nutrition and budgeting 

- Photography club and other creative activities 
- Flower arranging and Christmas wreath making 
- Celebrating diversity – Hosting events for key dates such as Black History Month and 

International Women’s Day 
- Boxercise sessions 
- Yoga classes 

 

78



Page 11 of 13 

2.11  Service User Stories

 
 

79



Page 12 of 13 

 

3. Alternative options considered and not recommended 

3.1 Not relevant in relation to this report. 

4. Post decision implementation 

4.1 Not relevant in relation to this report 

5. Implications of decision  

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

5.1.1 Substance misuse service commissioned activity form part of the Council’s statutory 

80



Page 13 of 13 

duties under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to commission and provide 
appropriate public health services. 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 

5.2.1 There are no current financial implications associated with the recommendations of this 
report. 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 

5.3.1 There are no current legal implications associated with the recommendations of this 
report. 

5.4 Social Value 

5.4.1 Social Value was considered as part of the substance misuse services Contract award 
criteria, to ensure maximum benefits can be achieved via the agreed and approved 
financial spend on commissioned services but not relevant to this specific report. 

5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 There is in place a Performance Framework agreed to monitoring substance misuse 
services and set KPIs, including performance and outcome measures which we 
continue to monitor and reviewed through contract management on a quarterly basis. 

5.6 Corporate Parenting 

5.6.1 There are no direct implications for children and, the young people’s drugs and alcohol 
services are open to young people under 25. 

5.7 Consultation and Engagement 

5.7.1 Not relevant in relation to this report 

5.8 Environmental Impact 

5.8.1 Not relevant in relation to this report 

6. Background papers 

6.1 None 

 

 

81



This page is intentionally left blank



Barnet Council's Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment 
 
What is the Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment? 
 
The Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment is a comprehensive evidence-based analysis conducted by 
Barnet Council to identify the root causes and contributing factors of serious violence. This assessment yields 
valuable insight to develop an evidence-based strategy to address these issues and effectively allocate 
resources to reduce and prevent serious violence in our community.  
 
Why are we conducting the Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment? 
 
As part of the Police Crime Sentencing and Courts Act 2022's Serious Violence Duty (Duty) requirements, 
Barnet is conducting a Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment and producing a Serious Violence Duty 
Strategy. Barnet’s Serious Violence Duty Strategy summarises key aspects of the Needs Assessment; local 
partnership arrangements to lead on delivery of the duty; areas of activity to prevent and reduce serious 
violence; and activity to engage with voluntary sector organisations, communities - including young people, 
as well as businesses. 
 
The Duty places requirements upon London boroughs and designated public bodies to agree on: local 
partnership arrangement to lead on the Duty; definition of serious violence; consistent data sharing; 
analytical processes to produce the Strategic Needs Assessment; and Strategy on kinds of serious violence 
that occur in Barnet, causes of that violence, how the Duty will be implemented locally to prevent and 
reduce serious violence. The London Violence Reduction Unit developed the London Guidance, that builds 
on the national document. Barnet’s Strategy follows a strategy template for a consistent London approach 
and alignment with the national document. 
 
The main Duty holders in this process are: 
• Police; 
• Fire and rescue authorities; 
• Justice organizations (youth offending teams and probation services); 
• Health bodies (Integrated Care Boards); and 
• Local authorities. 
 
Serious Violence Definition 
 
Serious violence here is defined as: Any violence and exploitation affecting young people under the age of 
25, domestic abuse, and sexual violence. Within the context of these types of violence, it encompasses 
homicide, grievous bodily harm, actual bodily harm, rape, assault by penetration, sexual assault, personal 
robbery, threats to kill and violence against property caused during the commission of one of these offences. 
Domestic abuse is as defined in the Domestic Abuse Act 2021.  
 
What is the link to the Combating Drug Partnership Board? 
 
The Governments Serious Violence Strategy sets out specific types of crime and areas of criminality where 
serious violence or the threat of serious violence is inherent. An integral part of the National Combating 
Drugs Outcome Framework is to reduce drug related homicide and neighborhood crimes. Additionally, the 
Combating Drug Partnership Board (CDPB) recently completed a needs assessment exercise on Barnet Public 
Health - Substance Misuse with information on drug supply chains, offences, and interventions. Lastly, the 

83

AGENDA ITEM 10



CDPB includes Duty holders such as police, health bodies, and justice organizations who should be informed 
of and partake in the Duty. 
 
Project Timeline 
 

Steps Completion 
Data Collection and Analysis May 2023 
Needs Assessment (final draft for review)  July 2023 
Stakeholder Consultations September 2023 
Strategy Template (Final draft for Review) October 2023 
Submission January 2024 

Needs Assessment Components 
 
Serious Violence 
What is serious violence? 
What is the purpose of the serious violence duty needs assessment paper? 
What does the Borough of Barnet look like today? 
What is the context of serious violence incidents in the Borough of Barnet? 
 
Methodology 
What data collection and analysis methods are employed? 
 
Demographic and Socioeconomic Context 
What are the key demographic and socioeconomic indicators? 
 
Serious Violence Data and Trends 
What are the serious violence incidents (types of offences)? 
What are their spatial distributions? 
What are their trends over time? 
How do these numbers compare to like Boroughs, London, and the UK? 
 
Risk Factors and Vulnerable Populations 
What are the risk factors associated with serious violence in the area? 
 
Protective Factors and Assets  
What are community protective factors and assets that help prevent serious violence? 
What are community protective factors and assets that mitigate the impact of serious violence? 
 
Stakeholder Engagement and Partnerships 
What is the evidence benefit of engaging stakeholders and building partnerships to address serious 
violence? 
Who are the key stakeholders and partners? 
 
Current Interventions and Programs 
What are existing interventions, programs, and strategies for preventing or addressing serious 
violence? 

84



What is the effectiveness of these interventions? 
Where are there gaps or areas for improvement? 
 
Recommendations 
What are key recommendations for action to address serious violence? 
 
Implementation Plan 
What is the proposed implementation plan to realize recommendations? 
What are potential barriers to implementation and strategies for overcoming them? 
 
Monitoring ad Evaluation 
What is the framework for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of proposed strategies and 
intervention?
 
Data Collection Status 
 
Data collection centres around serious violence incidents as defined by the duty (see above) and 
related data (e.g., hospitalization violent injury or drug use, etc.) and factors associated with 
committing or being a victim of serious violence, per research and policy documents. 
 
It may cover the following.  
• Population density 
• Population stability 
• Age (distribution) 
• Life expectancy 
• Ethnicity 
• Gender 
• Religion 
• Family / housing composition 
• Education (levels and truancy) 
• (un)Employment rates and income levels 
• Economic conditions of geographic area 
• Poverty rates 
• Health (including mental health) 

conditions 

• Drug use 
• Proximity (to resources like 

transportation, parks, schools, etc., and 
blight, etc.)  

• Day to day amenities per 10,000 people 
• Vulnerable population / groups (as 

defined by Barnet Council) 
• Crime rates 
• Number of law enforcement per capita 
• How often areas are patrolled 
• Citizens attitude to crime (serious 

violence) 
• Citizens reporting of crime (serious 

violence) 
 
The table below shows the status of our data collection process. It is an overview of our progress 
and highlights gaps that we can use your help to complete. 
 

Description Source Open Data Set Collected 
Barnet Local Insight Barnet Council No Yes 
Census NOMIS/ONS Yes Yes 
London Ambulance Service LDS Yes/No (limited data) No 
British Transport BT Yes (maps) Yes 
Crime and safety statistics Crimerate Yes (maps) Yes 
Metropolitan Police Service MET Yes/No (limited data) No 

85



Hospital A&E, Episode Statistics NHS No No 
Transport for London TfL Yes (maps) Yes 
MOPAC – Trust and Confidence Dashboard LDS/MOPAC Yes (dashboards) Yes 
Deprivation / Levelling Up UK Gov Yes Yes 
Local Health Profiles OHID Yes Yes 
Local Government Data LG Inform Yes Yes 
Education and Skills DoE / UK Gov Yes Yes 
Labour Market NOMIS/ONS Yes Yes 

 
 
Completion of this exercise requires effective data sharing from these sources and beyondShould 
you have any information to accelerate the data collection process, questions, or require further 
information, please contact Diasmer Bloe at diasmer.bloe@barnet.gov.uk. 

86

mailto:diasmer.bloe@barnet.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Contact: Corinna Demetriou Tel 020 8359 2860  corinna.demetriou@barnet.gov.uk  

 

 

  

Safer Communities Partnership Board 

Forward Plan 

July 2023-July 2024 

 

 

87

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 11



Safer Communities Partnership Board – Forward Plan 

 

21st July 2023 
 
Title of Report Overview of theme/decision Report of (officer) Issue Type (Non-Key, Key, 

Urgent) 
 
Performance Update (Q4 
2021/22 & Q1 2022/23)  
 

 
Relevant to all priority areas of 
the Community Safety Strategy 
 

 
Community Safety Team, LBB 
 

 
Non-Key 

 
Family Services Update (Q4) 

 
Relevant to Priority 4 of the 
Community Safety Strategy 
 

 
Director Children’s Social Care, 
LBB 

 
Non-Key 

 
North West BCU Police Update 
to the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board  

 
Relevant to all areas of the 
Community Safety Strategy  

 
Metropolitan Police 

 
Non-Key 
 
Non-key 

 
London Fire Brigade Annual 
Update 

 
Relevant to all priority areas of 
the Community Safety Strategy 
 

 
Borough Commander, Barnet, 
London Fire Brigade 
 

 
Non-Key 

Update on Antisocial Behaviour 
(including refresh to all members 
of the tools and powers) 

 
Relevant to priorities 1 and 2 of 
the Community Safety Strategy 

Community Safety Manager Non-key 

Prevent Duty Performance 
Report 

 
Relevant to all areas of the 
Community Safety Strategy 

Prevent Coordinator  Non-Key 

Mental Health Charter 
presentation  

 Director of Public Health Non-Key  

Serious Violence Duty - Strategic 
Needs Assessment 

   

 

88



Safer Communities Partnership Board – Forward Plan 

 

27th October 2023 
 
Title of Report Overview of theme/decision Report of (officer) Issue Type (Non-Key, Key, 

Urgent) 
Performance Update  
 

   

North West BCU Police Update 
to the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board  
 

   

Family Services Update 
 

   

Combatting Drugs Partnership 
Update 

   

Barnet Safeguarding Adults 
Board 
 

 Independent Chairman, Adults 
Safeguarding Board 
 
 

 

Serious Violence Duty - Strategic 
Needs Assessment 

   

19th January 2024 
 
Title of Report Overview of theme/decision Report of (officer) Issue Type 
Performance Update     
North West BCU Police Update 
to the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board  
 

   

Family Services Update 
 

   

89



Safer Communities Partnership Board – Forward Plan 

Barnet Homes Update to the 
Safer Communities Partnership 
Board 

   

Victim Support Annual Update 
 

   

Serious Violence Duty - Strategic 
Needs Assessment 

   

26th April 2024 
 
Title of Report Overview of theme/decision Report of (officer) Issue Type 
Performance Update 
 

   

North West BCU Police Update 
to the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board  

Relevant to all areas of the 
Community Safety Strategy  

Metropolitan Police  

Family Services Update   Director Children’s Social Care, 
LBB 

 

Serious Violence Duty - Strategic 
Needs Assessment 

   

26th July 2024 
 
Title of Report Overview of theme/decision Report of (officer) Issue Type 
 
Performance Update   
 

 
Relevant to all priority areas of 
the Community Safety Strategy 

 
Community Safety Team, LBB 
 

 
Non-Key 

 
Family Services Update  

 
Relevant to Priority 4 of the 
Community Safety Strategy 

 
Director Children’s Social Care, 
LBB 

 
Non-Key 

  
Relevant to all areas of the 
Community Safety Strategy  

 
Metropolitan Police 

 
Non-Key 
 

90



Safer Communities Partnership Board – Forward Plan 

North West BCU Police Update 
to the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board  

Non-key 

 
London Fire Brigade Annual 
Update 

 
Relevant to all priority areas of 
the Community Safety Strategy 

 
Borough Commander, Barnet, 
London Fire Brigade 
 

 
Non-Key 

Update on Antisocial Behaviour 
(including refresh to all members 
of the tools and powers) 
 

Relevant to priorities 1 and 2 of 
the Community Safety Strategy 

Community Safety Manager Non-key 

Serious Violence Duty - Strategic 
Needs Assessment 

   

To be allocated    
Barnet Safer Neighbourhood 
Board 
 

 Chairman 
SNB 

 

 
Department for Work and 
Pensions 

 Senior National Account 
Manager, DWP 

 

 

91



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	TO:	Members of Safer Communities Partnership Board (Quorum 3)
	Assurance Group
	Order of business

	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Performance Dashboard- up to and including February 2023
	7 Family Services Report on Reducing Offending and Tackling Violence
	7.	REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
	7.1	To update the Safer Community Partnership Board regarding the progress made in relation to the delivery of the various work strands in Family Services in relation to Domestic Abuse, VAWG, Exploitation, Serious Youth Violence and Reducing Reoffending.
	7.2	For the SCPB to recognise progress made against the ambitions of the council in delivering reductions in exploitation, offending and comprehensive services to tackle all forms of violence and to note the commitment of the local authority to achieving a cohesive local model of delivery that improves outcomes for all residents.
	8.	ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED
	9.	POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION
	10.	IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION
	Corporate Priorities and Performance
	11.	Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability)
	11.1      There are no current financial implications associated with the recommendations of this report.
	12.	Legal and Constitutional References
	13.	Insight
	n/a
	14.	Social Value
	14.1	The cost of offending and reoffending is set out in the 2018 Home Office report on the Economic and Social Cost of Crime (2nd edition). The report followed a cohort of offenders identified in 2016 who subsequently went on to reoffend during the 12-month follow up. The total estimated economic and social cost of reoffending was £18.1 billion. In addition, there is a further personal, familial and community cost which impacts on the lives of individuals, children and families and the communities that they live in.
	14.2	48% of adults that spend time in prison go on to reoffend within 12-months of release. Prison does not treat offending and does not prevent reoffending (Ministry of Justice, 2019 ‘Proven reoffending statistics’: April – June 2017)
	14.3	Reducing reoffending seeks to minimise the harm caused and create opportunities for social integration, family cohesion and community engagement. For women, particularly those who are primary carers for children, the value in supporting those women to escape cycles of abuse, victimisation and offending may also mean providing a child(ren) with improved opportunities to grow up in their own family and to enjoy healthy and reliable contact with a primary carer.
	14.4	Violence preventative interventions, improve educational and health outcomes. Violence is a major cause of ill health negatively affects wellbeing; it is strongly related to inequalities. The poorest fifth of people in England have hospital admission rates for violence five times higher than those of the most affluent fifth. It affects individuals and communities and is a drain on health services, the criminal justice system and the wider economy. (Serious Violence Duty: Draft Guidance for responsible authorities, 2023)
	15.	Risk Management
	15.1	Risk management varies according to the different initiatives. The partnership or appropriate agencies are made aware of risks and actions to mitigate the risk are agreed and put in place. There is always risk that the partnership may not achieve the targets set due to factors outside its direct control – however there is strong partnership working in place enabling agencies to identify and highlight risk and be open to addressing the risk collectively.

	16.	Equalities and Diversity
	16.4	Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:
	16.5	Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. The relevant protected characteristics are:

	.
	17.	Corporate Parenting
	18.	Consultation and Engagement
	18.1	As a matter of public law, the duty to consult with regards to proposals to vary, reduce or withdraw services will arise in four circumstances:
	18.3	The refresh of the 0-19 Early Help Strategy and Vulnerable Adolescents Strategy will be informed by public consultations - including with partnership organisations, members and service users. This will be further detailed as the strategies are developed.

	19.	BACKGROUND PAPERs
	19.1   None.

	9 Performance and Delivery Progress on drug and alcohol misuse services
	1.	Why this report is needed
	1.1	This report provides the Safer Communities Partnership Board with progress on Public Health Performance and Delivery on drug and alcohol misuse services, which include update on the already set up Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP).
	2.	Reasons for recommendations
	2.1	To update the Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB) regarding the progress made in relation to the delivery of the various work strands of the Substance Misuse services which include the following; Barnet Combating Drugs Partnership (BCDP), Funding of Substance Misuse Services, Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery Services, Number of People Accessing Treatment and Outcomes, Data on Structured Treatment – Adults and Young People, Outreach and Community Engagement and, Recovery Orientated Treatment
	Barnet Combating Drugs partnership and Substance Misuse Services Update
	2.2	Overview: The national drug strategy, ‘From Harm to Hope’, was published in December 2021. It sets out the government’s 10-year plan to tackle harm caused by illegal drug use and related crime. The strategy was the government's response to two independent reports produced by Dame Carol Black in 2020 and 2021.
	2.3	Currently there is no national alcohol strategy and no plans have been announced to publish such a strategy. The most recent alcohol strategy was published for the period of 2012 to 2015. It is expected that local areas consider alcohol prevention and treatment as an integrated part of local substance misuse strategies.
	2.4	To ensure delivery of the national strategy, in addition to the JCDU, the government set out a framework of national and local accountability. This includes the setting up of Combating Drug Partnerships at each locality (to be locally determined), with Senior Responsible Officers (SROs), and a set of national performance measures. In London, all Combating Drugs Partnerships are at the borough level and, across the country, over 70% of SROs are Directors of Public Health. Some CDPs have Directors of Children Services, elected members or Police as designated SROs. In Barnet, Director of Public Health is an SRO for the Partnership, and it is chaired by elected member, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
	2.5.2	Whilst the Barnet CDPB will report to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB), there will be strong oversight from the Barnet Safer Communities Partnership Board (SCPB), with an expectation that relevant partners of the BSCPB will take leadership of key elements of the CDP Delivery Plan especially, on actions relating to breaking drug supply chains and addressing offending behaviour whilst working closely with the wider partnership. Other strategic boards will be asked to take ownership of areas that relate to their core business.
	2.5.3	The Barnet CDPB is currently finalising a local “From Harm to Hope” needs assessment which assesses Barnet’s delivery of the three strategic priorities. Following the needs assessment, a delivery plan will be agreed by the CDPB and HWBB. SCPB will receive agreed delivery plan, for noting and support for delivery.
	2.5.4	Creation of the CDPBs across the Country, brings together key partners to work together in combating drug relating crime whilst providing world class treatment and support to residents with addiction challenges.
	2.5.5	In Barnet, Public Health continue to work closely with other key departments of the Council to achieve and deliver on the main objectives of the CDP. Children and Families Department for example will play a key role on the Barnet CDPB given that they have a duty on tackling/addressing serious violence in the Borough, including their remit and role on reducing reoffending, tackling domestic abuse and violence against women & girls. These and other related elements of the national drug strategy via implementation and/or delivery of the local Barnet CDP Action Plan, will go a long way in ensuring that there is in place a coordinated and ambitious delivery plan focused on prevention, reducing harm, violence, exploitation, offending and treatment.
	2.5.6	This report asks the SCPB to note that it will be a good idea to keep the CDPB elements discussed as a standing update at the statutory working group of the SCPB.
	2.6	Funding
	2.6.1 In recent years, publicly funded alcohol and drug treatment has largely been commissioned using funding from the annual public health grant, overseen by Directors of Public Health within local authorities. In 2022/23, the budget for substance misuse treatment services was £2,349,399.34 for adults and £199,540.46 for young people. Both services are delivered by Change Grow Live.
	3.	Alternative options considered and not recommended
	3.1	Not relevant in relation to this report.
	4.	Post decision implementation
	4.1	Not relevant in relation to this report
	5.	Implications of decision
	5.1	Corporate Priorities and Performance
	5.1.1	Substance misuse service commissioned activity form part of the Council’s statutory duties under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to commission and provide appropriate public health services.
	5.2	Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability)

	5.2.1	There are no current financial implications associated with the recommendations of this report.
	5.3	Legal and Constitutional References
	5.3.1	There are no current legal implications associated with the recommendations of this report.
	5.4	Social Value
	5.4.1	Social Value was considered as part of the substance misuse services Contract award criteria, to ensure maximum benefits can be achieved via the agreed and approved financial spend on commissioned services but not relevant to this specific report.
	5.5	Risk Management
	5.5.1	There is in place a Performance Framework agreed to monitoring substance misuse services and set KPIs, including performance and outcome measures which we continue to monitor and reviewed through contract management on a quarterly basis.
	5.6	Corporate Parenting
	5.6.1	There are no direct implications for children and, the young people’s drugs and alcohol services are open to young people under 25.
	5.7	Consultation and Engagement
	5.7.1	Not relevant in relation to this report
	5.8	Environmental Impact
	5.8.1	Not relevant in relation to this report

	6.	Background papers
	6.1	None

	10 Serious Violence Needs Assessment
	What is the Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment?
	Why are we conducting the Serious Violence Duty Needs Assessment?
	Serious Violence Definition
	What is the link to the Combating Drug Partnership Board?
	Project Timeline
	Needs Assessment Components
	Data Collection Status

	11 Forward Work Programme

